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- Strategic Report

The dlrectors present their Strategtc Report on AXA PPP healthcare ||m|ted (“AXA Health” or “the Company )
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS

The Company’ s principal and ongoing actlwty is the writing of medlcal insurance business.

Results and performance
The results of the Company for the year show a profit on ordrnary ‘activities before tax of £115m (2020

., £116m).

The underwriting result, equal to the balance on the technical account for general business including other‘
operational income and expenses, shows a profit of £100m (2020: £102m). Premiums have increased by
£5m where, for UK business, the pandemic response led to a competitive proposition in the market, though
this was largely offset by continued suppressed demand internationally and for travel insurance. During the. -

- year the earning pattern of premiums was reviewed and amended, accounting for the expected continued

catch-up of delayed treatments into 2022. The impact on earned premium for the year was a reduction of
£66m (2020: £91m). The accounts include a provision of £31m (2020: £31m) for the refund of premiums to
members ansmg from the conclusion of the AXA Health Customer Promise.

A catch-up in delayed treatments arising from restrictions on access to hospitals during 2020 has meant
claims incurred net of reinsurance |ncreased this year by £154m (17%).

" . There has been a decrease in admmlstratlon expenses of £14m (9%) due to an internal reorganisation that .

has resulted in £13m of costs in 2021 being incurred by another entlty within the group The cost is. offset by
hagher commission payments of £13m.

The investment return for the year, relating to the investment amounts in the non-technical result isa proflt .
of-£15m (2020: £14m), further analysis is provided in notes 6, 7 and 8. An increase in debt income, gains
“on funds and debt, plus a reduction in impairment is offset by a decrease in realised gain$’ on equities, net
foreign exchange losses (including foreign currency derivatives) and credit default swaps.

Other operating income of £27m (2020: £25m) relates to non-insurance busmess administration fees. Other

" operating expenses of £32m (2020: £32m) includes restructuring costs of £4m (2020: £4m); foreign

exchange losses of £1m (2020: £2m) and £27m (2020: £25m) relating to non- |nsurance business.
_Business envrronment '

The private medical insurance market remains challenging and competmve with affordabullty provrdmg
considerable challenge, in particular to the acquisition and retention of individual customers. .

Strategy

: AXA Health's strategy is to build on its existing position of strength to become a customer-centric and digital-

first Health and wellbeing partner for its .existing and potential customers. After a challenging 2020, AXA
Health continued to deliver profitable growth in 2021 despite an ongoing decline in individual market volumes
due to the ongoing affordability challenge and intense competition, particularly within the corporate sector

" AXA Health demonstrated a sustained |mprovement in customer satisfaction and NPS; NPS of +47. 7pts on
Individual (at markét average) and +34. 7pts on Group (+1.1pts vs market average).

AXA Health continues to focus on development of lnnovatlve affordable health and weliness capabilities.

. Development -and. enhancement of our insured and health and wellbelng propositions contlnued to be a

focus area for 2021.

‘The strategic focus for the next 2 years will be to continue to protect and strengthen AXA Health's current
position, broaden our offering to customers and adopt agile ways of working to improve productivity. ’
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Strategic Report (continued) -

Key performance indicators (“KPIs”) .

'The Board monitors the progress of the Company by reference to the following KPIs:

2021 ’ 2020
Gross premiums written £1,562m £1,557m Reflected in the. General Business
: : e ‘techmcal account ‘
Profit before tax . . £115m £116m Reﬂected in the Profit and Loss
. . ' account”.
- Loss ratio : - (69%) -« (65%) Ratio of claims mcurrepdl
. - net of reinsurance, to .
earned premiums net of
Qe ) : reinsurance including
' other operating income
Equity shareholder’s funds £398m £360m Reflected on the Balance Sheet

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

" The AXA'UK Group has an established process for risk acceptance and risk management, which is
addressed through a framework of policies, procedures and internal controls. ‘All policies are subject to
-ongoing review by management, risk management and group internal audit. Compliance with regulation,
legal and ethical standards is a high priority for the Company and the compliance and finance teams take
on an important oversight role in this regard. Line management is responsible for maintaining an internal
control framework to manage financial and operational risks, which is monitored regularly to ensure the
completeness, accuracy and integrity of the Company'’s financial information. ’

The principal risks from the healthcare business arise mainly from events outside of the Company s control
such as fluctuations in the timing, frequency and severity of claims compared to expectations. Underwriting,
reserving and reinsurance strategies may also give rise to risk and uncertainty through inaccurate pricing,
inadequate reinsurance protection and inadequate reserving; these are largely within management'’s control .
and strategie$ are communicated clearly throughout the business through policy statements and guidelines.
In addition, the business is exposed to a range of operational risks with both internal and external drivers,
which are managed through the same overarching risk management framework. These include conduct risk
and the treatment of vulnerable customers, the uncertainty and potential impacts of COVID-19, risks
concerning cyber and data protection management, as well challenges on retail market pricing and the
delivery of competitive and fair prices. As set out in the Directors’ Report, the dlrectors are closely monltormg
the situation in Ukraine and the risks to the Company arising thereform. .

Regarding Cyber Rlsk,~the Company ‘maintains a strong focus on data and systems security, including
cybersecurity issues. Millions of the Company’s customers trust the Company to protect and care for what
is precious to them. This includes protecting their personal information and the services they rely on. The
security strategy is designed to anticipate threats and protect what matters to keep the Company’s
customers and colleagues safe and secure. Control measures are in place to mitigate the Company’s
exposure to.cyber risk and our maturity is measured by International Standards Organisation (ISO)
assessment scores. In addition, training programmes are run annually to educate staff on.cyber security.

Financial risk management, including the impact of risk on economic capital, is discussed in the
- Management of financial risk note set out on pages 56 to 68 of the Annual Financial Report. '
FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The Company has a number of initiatives to develop business capablllty and to strengthen the customer
proposition, in line with its strategic goals.: )

Over the coming years, AXA PPP will focus on developing both new and improved proposmons which meet
broad customer health needs, including through better leverage of data. In parallel, the business will invest
in programmes to simplify and strengthen the foundations and capabilities of the business.
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Strateglc Report (contmued)

*As mentioned in the Dlrectors Report the impact of the COVID 19 pandemlc is being monitored and plans -
are being established and implemented to'manage the effects of the outbreak and assess disruptions and
other risks to its operations. :

The directors consider that the financial |mpact of the COVID 19 virus on the UK-economy and the Company _
continued to create a challenging trading environment with a considerale level of uncertarnty To date the
largest |mpact is the * Customer Promise” not to prof t from the pandemic - .

SECTION 172 STATEMENT o ¢
The Company, its stakeholders and relevant issues

The principal and ongoing activity. of AXA PPP healthcare I|m|ted (“AXA Health” or the “Company ") is the
writing of medical msurance business. . ) <

The directors consnder both mdmdually and collectlvely, that they have acted in the way that would most
likely promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole (having regard to-
relevant stakeholders and matters set out in section 172(1)(a-f) of the Companles Act 2006) in the deusaons.
taken during the year ended 31 December 2021. .

In comlng to this conclusion, the directors have considered who the stakeholders of the business are and
issues it needs to take into consideration and concluded that the following are material to the Company

- Customers: The customers of the Company and the quality, pricing and appropriateness of the products
' and services sold to them which have @ major influence on the reputation of the Company

- Employees: Though the Company does not directly employ its.vyorkforce (these are largely employed
by another subsidiary within the group; AXA PPP Healthcare Group Limited) the workforce’s culture,
values, behaviours, performance and engagement drive how it serves its customers and interacts with
suppliers .

- Suppllers'and third parties: The Company manages and promotes strong relationships with its suppliers -
(whether internal or external to the AXA Group (“AXA”")).to ensure good service, cost effectvveness use
of economies of scale and effective collaboration '

- Government & Industry Bod/es The Company recognises the importance of engagmg with Government’

and key industry bodies to ensure that legislation made impacting the Company does not have

" unintended consequences for our customers and business. Active engagement through membership of
"key bodles provides an opportunity to help steer and shape policy and protect against reputation risk

- Environmental matters: The Company is commltted to understandlng and mltlgatlng the |mpact that
_climate change will have on customers and the busmess

- Regulators: The Company is authonsed by the Prudential Regulation Authority (“PRA") and regulated
) by the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA") and PRA. Ensuring there is a strong and positive relationship
with the Company'’s regulators is key to-the Company’s business. It determines its:licence to operate,

its ability to recruit and retain senior staff and its reputation wrth customers

- Communities: The Company understands that it has a vital role to play in being a responsible corporate
citizen and believes this is important to the reputation of the Company and its licence to operate '
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Section 172 statement (continued)

- Shareholder: The Company has one immediate shareholder; AXA Insurance UK plc which provided its
equity capital. AXA SA is the ultimate shareholder. The shareholder expects a fmancnal return on its -
investment and this is delivered through regular dividends

Methods of engagement

For each of these groups or issues the Company seeks to ensure it understands concerns or salient matters
. through a process of engagement, ‘which is summarlsed at a high-level below: .

¢

- Customers

[¢]

The Company strives to build trusted relationships with customers and to always treat them -
fairly, providing commitment to its customers that the business deluvers against its purpose, to -
act for human progress by protecting what matters. Delivering on this purpose helps to enhance
AXA's reputation, both in the eyes of customers and other external stakeholders such as the
regulators and media.

Customer experience tracking enables feedback to be gained from customers at a number of
different points in the journey enabling action plans and changes to customer experiences
where necessary. The Company actively encourages customers to give feedback externally on
sites like Trustpilot and Feefo (where the Company has once again been awarded Platinum
Trusted accreditation) '

NPS survey findings are also used to improve customer engagement with knowledge being
shared across -all of our business. Customer focus groups are led by the Customer Insights -
team. These insights help shape customer experience, service and communlcatlons to make
sure they are relevant and useful to our customers - .
The Company has embedded a customer-led philosophy in its proposrtron development
processes, incorporating formal, structured stages of insight, and using this feedback to
determine the requirements for. IT and ‘customer experience enhancements

In response to the decline in NHS cancer screening rates during the pandemic, and due to the
decrease seen in new cancer cases being raised by members within AXA Health, the
Company ran two proof of concept campaigns offering free cancer screening tests for breast,
bowel and cervical cancers to almost 100,000 eligible individual members. Approximately
18,500 tests were taken up, which to date have identified approximately 700 abnormal results
and received excellent customer feedback. The Company is now considering how cancer
screening services can become a more permanent service proposmon

- Employees: .

(¢]

The Company is committed to enabling its workforce at all levels of the organisation to actively
contribute and participate in decisions where appropriate. Feedback from the workforce is
sought through regular Pulse surveys, where staff can provide their views on how the busmess '
is performing - ’
Vox is AXA Health's consultatlve body representing all employees ‘and managers. It meets
every month to discuss new |deas policy changes and business matters affecting employees .

" and managers

AXA Health has additional employee forums which seek feedback from employees to identify
where progress can be made and to contribute to the business’ action plans. Regular live
exchange video conferences are held with the CEO and leadership team. These sessions
enable two-way dialogue between the leadership team and employees through Questlon and
Answer sessions

The Company has access to four Employee Networks providing an opportunlty for employee- .
communities to promote positive cultural change within the business and the Company .’
participates - in and facilitates these. The Employee Networks are focused on Balance
(supporting working families and gender equality), Pride (supporting our LGBT community),
REACH (focusing on the under-representation of staff due to race, ethnicity & culture heritage)
and ABLE (raising awareness about disabilities and carers and promoting change and support)
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“Section 172 statement (continued)

o

[¢]

-~ Suppliers:

(¢]

There are regular online diversity and inclusion live exchanges and a number of focus groups
have been conducted with employees on ethnicity, gender and disability

During 2021, AXA UK & Ireland launched its “Fairer in Five" campaign, asking employees to
anonymously disclose diversity data which can be used to develop a more data driven approach
to diversity & inclusion in the future. AXA also ran its first Global Inclusion Survey where every

: employee was mvnted to share their views on inclusion at AXA

The Company promotes strong relatlonshlps with its network of suppllers which are actively and

‘consistently managed in accordance with AXA UK Group company-wide policies and a

procurement process to manage third party risk. These processes ensure that AXA and its
customers receive the agreed standards in service, quality and performance

.. AXA requires its vendors to be socially and environmentally responsible through the mandatory

inclusion of a Corporate Responsibility Clause in all contracts, which are dlscussed with vendors -
during contractual negotiations

- During 2021, AXA has worked closely with all of its key suppliers to ensure that they could

operate effectively as so allow AXA to continue to support its customers. One of the actions

taken was to accelerated supplier payments, releasing monies ahead of the expected

settlement date, once the business had confirmed the supply of goods or services had taken

place to alleviate the cashflow pressures that some of AXA’s supply partners may have been

facing at that time. In 2021 AXA continued to make payments to IT & General Expenses

suppliers as soon as invoices were received :

The Company reports bi-annually on its: payment practices in accordance with Section 3 of the

Small Business, Enterprise and Employment Act 2015. For the six-month period to 31

December 2021 the Company made 98% of its payments to suppllers within 30 days or less

(2020: 99%) .
Engagement with hospital providers and other external sources of medlcal expertlse increased -
during the pandemrc to inform comprehensive communications that were issued internally and .
externally. This was particularly useful for Customer Service, allowing for appropriate member ‘

communication and direction, and to inform and engage AXA Health’s Intermediary communlty

- Government & Industry Bodies:

0

During 2021, representative. members of the AXA UK & Ireland Management Committee have
engaged with governmental and mdustry bodies on a number of toplcs including
apprentlceshrps and COP26.

- Enwronmental matters:

o

As a global organisation AXA has set stretching carbon targets to further align its busrness with
the Paris Agreement, has a green investment target of €24 billion by 2023 and has committed
to an investment “warming potential” target of 1.5 °C by 2050. From a Group perspective, AXA
has sent a clear message by signing up to the RE100, stating a commitment to source 100%

renewable electricity by 2025, and Chaired the UN-convened Net-Zero Insurance Alliance. In

addition, the AXA Research Fund, which was created in 2007, encourages scientific research
that helps understanding and prevention of environmental, life and socio-economic risks
At an AXA UK level, a Strategic Climate Change Working Group was established in 2021 to

- help accelerate AXA UK & Ireland climate change actions, aligned to the Group’s focus. The
- Working Group provides a single and consistent point of contact with AXA Group and the AXA

Research Fund.
The Company's directors are committed to the Group s ambltlons and demonstrate this in the
following ways: :
e The Company is committed to reducing its |mpact on the environment by actlvely
" managing the: use of energy, paper and ‘water consumption, as well .as carbon
emissions and waste
e The Company is committed to reducing its own carbon footprint, for example by
committing to be 100% renewable by 2025 in line with RE100.
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Section 172 statement (continued)

e« The Company matches 96% of the electricity used across their UK operations against
" renewable generation (REGO certified) .

Commumty :
o The Company strives to play a positive fole in society and actively supports communities it °
'operates in. From volunteering and mentoring to fundraising or sharing business expertlse the
. Company encourages its employees to get involved where possible :
o Anew Corporate Responsibility Strategy was launched in September 2020 made up of 3 pillars;
- Promote Good Health, Progress in Society, Protect the Planet with goals and measures agreed
- against each. Employees were invited to choose charity partners aligned with the pillars of.the
CR strategy, which were announced in January 2021 together with new "Pennies from Payroll”
initiative to enable employees to make a monthly donation via payroll
o The AXA UK Group continues to support apprentlceshlp hlres from a diverse range of
backgrounds and in support of wider societal issues :
o The Company has supported society during a time-of national crisis in the pandemic, by aIIowmg
some of its clinically trained staff the opportunity to volunteer with the NHS

Regulators: .

o The Company aims to malntam strong, effective relationships with the PRA and FCA, working
in a collaborative and transparent manner to enable good customer outcomes. Proper
governance and effective communication are key in fostering these relationships. The
cooperative and open nature of this relationship is set by the tone at the top where there is
continuous engagement and the relationship with both regulators is a positive one

.o The Board and Management seek to pro-actively inform the regulators of significant events or
upcoming change

o Both the FCA and PRA engaged directly with the Board foIIownng the issue-of review letters
(PSM and FEL) through attendance at Board meetings ‘

Shareholder:

o The Company engages with its shareholder through regular briefing of group directors on its
performance and upward reporting through management information systems

o Shareholder representatives are included in the AXA UK pic Board composition and attend AXA
Insurance UK plc and AXA PPP Healthcare Limited Board meetmgs They are_also invited to
attend AXA UK Committees at their preference

o During the year, collaborative discussions were held with the shareholder-on a number of toplcs
including financial performance, dividend/capital management planning, transformation
strategles corporate restructure actions, tax planning and strategic opportunities

Key decisions and consnderatlon of stakeholders

- During 2021, the directors continued to monitor the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the Company’s

operations, its people, customers and financial position .

o The Company has continued to'support its workforce through the pandemlc in a variety of ways,
including awarding additional holiday days as “Thank You Days” (an AXA Group initiative) to
recognise the hard work and dedication of employees throughout the pandemlc and increasing

.- -the emergency dependent leave.offering

o. the implementation of AXA’s global Smart Working strategy continued throughout 2021, to

positively change the Company’s technology, office space and ways of working, with |ts
. customers at the heart of every decasuon

The dlrectors consider that the AXA UK Group s employee engagement programmes, explained above,
continue to serve the Company’s requirement in enabling émployees from all levels of the organisation
to actively contrlbute and participate in decisions where appropriate
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Section 172 statement (continued) .

_In June 2021, the Board approved the paymen.t of a £55 million interim dividend. Payments of the interim

dividend was made through profits made during the year and/or drawn from available reserves and were.
in accordance with the principles and practices of the AXA UK Capital Management Pollcy which the. .
directors’consider appropriate to the Company, including:
. o Maintaining a level of capital consistent with Board approved risk appetlte statements

o Maintaining sufficient resources to fund planned growth .

o Compliance with Solvency 2 rules and regulations

o = Compliance with any additional local regulatory capital management rules and requirements -
The directors took into account all relevant matters set out in Part 23, Chapter 1 of the Companies Act
concerning the payment of dividends, including reviewing the Company's distributable reserves and its
ability to pay its debts as they fall due, having regard to the entirety of the Company's business and the
actual and contingent liabilities (present and future) inherent in that business. Full consideration was
given to the impact of the pandemic on the Company’s solvency position. The directors concluded that
neither the long-term interests of the Company nor the interests of its creditors were significantly
prejudicéd by payment of the interim dividends and-that dlstnbutable reserves were sufficient to cover
the dividends :

In June 2021, the Board approved |ts annual Slavery & Human Traffi cklng Statement pursuant to
Section 54 of the UK Modern Slavery Act 2015 (“MSA") The AXA Group has a Iong history of adhering -
to and promoting strong professional ethics and is committed to conducting its business according to
the highest standards .of honesty and fairness. This commitment to observing such ethical standards is
designed not only to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations in the various jurisdictions -
where AXA operates but also to earning and keeping the continued trust of its clients, shareholders,
personnel and business partners. The directors believe that the Comipany’s success and reputation is

not only dependant on the quality of its products and the services provided to its customers, but alsoon
- the way it does business. The Company ensures that it works with suppliers that meet the AXA
-standards with respect to ethics and corporate responsibility through a clearly documented process for

suppller selection and contracting

In October 2021 the Company-approved its strategic asset allocation for the next three years following
recommendation from the AXA UK Investment Committee and having reviewed the effects of inflation
on expected returns, taking into account the interests of all its stakeholders

Approved by the'board on the 22 Marc.h 2022 and signed on its behalf by

R. J. A. Moquet
Director
25 March 2022
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The directors present their report and . the audlted flnanmal statements for the _year ended
31 Decembger 2021.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Future developments are discussed in the Strategic Report.
GOING CONCERN ' o

- The Company's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position are set out in the Strategic Report. The ability to cope with unexpected risks to
the financial position is shown within the Management of Financial Risk note set out on pages 56 to 68 ofa
the financial report.

" The Company has considerable financial resources and detailed budgets have been prepared and reviewed
setting out the continued financial position-of the Company for the next 12 months together with a strategic
plan to 2023, approved by the board. In recognition of the economic uncertainty arising out of the COVID-
19 pandemic and rising inflation, plans and forecasts have been re- -modelled using sensitivity analysis to.'
assess a range of possible outcomes. . . .

The directors therefore believe that the Company is we|| placed to.manage its busmess risks desplte the
current uncertain economic outlook arising in part from the COVID-19 pandemic, its impacts so far, and .-
inflationary pressures, the directors have a reasonable expectation, based on sensitivity analysis, that the-
Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the Annual Fmanmal Report.

DIVIDENDS
A £55m dividend was paud in July 2021. Th|s was settled in cash.
DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who were in office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial
report are shown on page 1. The directors who have served for part of the year are given below:

K.A. Hale was appointed as a director of the Company on 1 April 2021

C. J. Millington was appointed as a director of the Company on 1 April 2021

M. R. Jackson resigned as a director of the Company on 25 June 2021

P. F. Hazell resigned as a director of the Company on 31 December‘2021
Directors’ qualifying third party and pension scheme |ndemn|ty provisions

The Company is party to a group wide indemnity policy which benefits all of its current directors and is ab
quallfymg third party indemnity provision for the purpose of the Compames Act 2006.

The indemnification was in force during the year and at the date of approval of the Annual Fmancnal Report.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT '

Information on the use of financial instruments by the Company and its management of fmancual risk is
disclosed in the Management of financial risk note set out on pages 56 to 68 of the fnanmal report

BRANCHES OUTSIDE THE UK

The Company operates a branch in Malta. The branch ceased selling direct i insurance from 31 March 2019
. Therefore no new business is being sold but the branch is in run off until all outstanding clalms are settled.

POLITICAL DONATIONS

The Company made no d_onatiens for political purposes.

. CLIMATE RELATED RISK

. AXAUK and its subsidiaries are committed to playing their part in tackling climate change through their role
as an employer, management of operations, development of propos_itions and management of investments.

4
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Governance

The AXA UK Combined Boards Rnsk Committee (“CBRC") has the duty to assess and monitor the AXA UK
Group’s exposure to risks from .Climate Change and management actions to mitigate such risks. Climate-
related risks are reported through relevant Management Committees, through to the CBRC and on to the
Board.

Strategy

The Company’s ambition-is to play an active role within the UK and Ireland insurance mdustnes in tackling
climate change, taking a clear, methodical and collaborative approach that will produce long-term results.
The Strategic Climate Change Working Group, sponsored by AXA’s UK & Ireland CEO, will draw together
activity from across the business and. will recommend a high-level climate change strategy for Board
approval in 2022. Climate change will explicitly be considered within the annual strategy process.

Risk management (mcludmg metrics and targets)

A risk framework has been developed around the management of climate-related risks, incorporating the .
construction of a Climate Change Risk Radar and a draft UK-wide Climate Change Key Risk Indicator
Dashboard, which will continue to be developed throughout 2022 to help monitor climate-related risk
exposure. There are a number of potential climate-related risks that the busmess could face, some of WhICh
will depend on regulatory actions and government policy.

Environmental impact

The Company is committed to reducing its impact on the environment, further details of which are dlsclosed
within the section 172 statement in the Strategic Report and Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Dividend payment

A dividend of £80m was approved by the board for payment on the 22 March 2022
‘Ukraine '

On February 24,2022, Russia invaded Ukraine, triggering a war and ‘worldwide geopolitical tensions,
leading the United States, Europe, the United Kingdom arid some other countries to impose unprecedented
financial and trade sanctions on the .Russian economy, including asset freezes and restnctlons on
individuals and institutions, notably the Russian Central Bank.

The directors are closely momtorlng the situation and the direct and indirect impact on the Company. The .
Company has well established and robust policies and procedures to ensure adherence to all regulatory
requirements. Although the situation is evolving, the Directors are confident that any direct exposure through
underwriting activities is negligible, and the operational impact is not material. .

" The macro-economic environment is similarly belng closely monitored, and in particular the impact on

financial markets, inflation and interest rates. The Company forms part of the AXA UK Group which has an. ..
established risk management framework which details how each financial risk profile is identified, measured,
monitored and controlled. The current: Ievel of market volatility is not significantly impacting the UK
" sinvestment portfolios. -

STREAMLINED ENE‘RGY AND CARBON REPORTING

The Company reports on |ts energy usage and carbon dlox1de equivalent (*CO2e”) emissions for the year

.ended 31 December 2021 in accordance with the Companies Directors’ Report) and Limited Liability

Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018. Further details in connection with the energy

commitments of the Company and AXA Group can be found in the Section 172 ‘Statement within the
Strategic Report L

The methodology used to calculate our energy usage and CO2e emissions is in accordance with the GHG
Protocol Corporate Accounting -and Reporting: Standard, using the operational control approach in

_ determining the Company’s sources of emissions. Data has been calculated using the UK Government
GHG Conversion Faotbrs for Company Reporting. All emission and energy data are UK based. -

10
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STREAMLINED ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING (contmued)

Emissions data is split between scopes 1'to 3 as defined by the GHG Protocol corporate Accountlng and
Reporting Standard: '
(a) Scope 1 - emissions directly into the atmosphere as a result of the activities of the Company and
‘deriving from sources owned or controlled by the Company, such as boilers used for the heatmg of
offices;
(b) Scope 2 - emissions into the atmosphere assomated with the Company’s consumptlon of
purchased electricity. Location-based represents the average emissions deriving from the electricity
grid serving -our locations and market-based reflects the actual emissions emanating from the
electricity the Company has purchased which includes renewable 'sources;
(c) Scope 3 - emissions into the atmosphere as a consequence of the activities of the Company and
" derived from sources not owned or controlled by the Company, such as business travel undertaken
by employees in their own cars.

Usage (kWh) ‘ ' S 2021 2020

Company energy consumptlon used to calculate emissions U 5,723,259 5,418,221

Emissions '(tonn'es CO2e) o -

Scope 1 . _ \ _ : ‘

Emissions from co,mbustionof gas ' o ©. 263 284

Scobe 2 ) _

Emissions from purchased electricity (location) . : . 891 916'

Emissions from purchased electricity (market) ' , 37 46
\

Scope 3

Emissions from business travel in contract hlre cars or employee-owned -

vehicles o - - .57 24

Total groés, emissions . : :
Location-based . ' o - 1,211 1,224
Market-based : : ' : 357 . 354

Intensity Ratio (tonnes CO2e)
Total gross emissions per m2 of office floor space

Location based ' : o 0.047 A0.046,'
Market based - ' Y o - } - 0.012 0.013

Scope 3 gross emissions per thousand miles travelled . - , 0.266 0.271 -

7

The Company is contributing towards an AXA Group targét of reducing scope 1 and 2 emissions by 31%
and scope 3 by 18% by 2025. Further information. on AXA Group environmental footprint management
initiatives and targets can be found at https://www.axa.com/en/about- us/enwronmental-footprmt-
management : :

" The scope 1 and 2 metric of gross emissions in tonnes of CO2e per m2 of office space is based on a total
area of 24,788m2 (2020: 25,864). The scope 3 metric of gross emissions in tonnes of CO2e per thousand
miles is based on a total business mileage of 213,813 (2020: 88,445) and provides a useful intensity
measurement by linking the business miles undertaken by employees in their own cars with the assocrated
emissions. . .
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Directors’ Report (continued) : _ ' ‘ ‘

STREAMLINED ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING (contlnued) RN

The intensity ratios have remained stable.

Y

Energy efficiency

'Dunng the prior year over 100,000 kWh of energy was generated using solar energy at the Ccmpanys
Bristol and Tunbridge Wells S|tes and the Company has continued to beneft from this generation during
the current year. :

During the year the Company has continued to benefit from an AXA UK refresh of on-site network equipment
which commenced in 2020 and which has replaced legacy devices with new products provndmg up to 60%
more efficient use, in respect of power ahd air conditioning services. _

'STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR

Each director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved confirms that:

a) so far as he/she is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Companys auditor is .
- unaware; and -

‘b) he/she has taken-all the steps that he/she ought to have taken: as a director in order to make
himself/herself aware of any relevant audlt information and to establlsh that the Company’s auditor is
* aware of that mformatlon

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

' The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulatlons

\

.Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law-
the directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Fmancral

Reportlng Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework' (“FRS 101"). '

" Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company
for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to: -

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; - :
* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
o - state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101, have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
" prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is mapproprlate to presume that
the Company will continue in business. .

‘The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are-sufficient to show and
explain the Company'’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taklng :
reasonable steps for the preventron and detectlon of fraud and other |rregular|t|es )

Approved by the board on the 22 March 2022 and signed on its behalf by

e

R. J.A. Moquet
Director . :
25 March 2022 _ !
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Independent Auditor’s Report
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AXA PPP HEALTHCARE LIMITED

- Opinion

- We have audited the financial statements of AXA PPP healthcare limited (the ‘Company’) for the year ended .
31 December 2021 which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, the Statement of Comprehensive Income,
the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Changes in Equity and notes to the financial statements, including a

.summary of significant accounting policies. ' -

The fnancial reporting framework. that has been applied in their 'preparation is applicable law.and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework" {United Klngdom
Generally Accepted Accountlng Practice). .

In our opinion, the fi nancial statements

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Company s affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of |ts
profit for the year then ended;
-« have been properly prepared in accordance with United ngdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and :
«_ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards - are further described in the “Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
" Company in accordance with the ethical requirements. that are relevant to our audit of the financial
_statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to public interest entities, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audlt evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our opinion.

13

Conclusuons relatmg to going concern

‘In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our audit procedures to evaluate the directors’ assessment of the Company's ablllty to continue to adopt

o .the going concern basis of accounting included but were not limited to:

* .Undertaking an initial assessment at the-planning stage of the audit to identify events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern;

e Making enquiries of the directors to understand the period of assessment considered by them, the

~assumptions they considered and the implication- of those when assessmg the Company’s future
financial performance;

e« Challenging the appropriateness of the dlrectors key assumptions in their forecasts, as described in
‘note 1.1, by understanding key assumptions |nclud|ng their consideration of events after the balance .
“sheet date, assessing the directors’ consideration of severe but plausible scenarios and performing

alternative scenario analysis to stress the forecasts; .
Assessing the historical accuracy. of forecasts prepared by the dlrectors

Considering the consistency of the directors’ forecasts with other areas of the financial statements and
our audit; and

e Evaluating the key assumptions used and judgements ‘applied by the directors mcludmg their

con5|derat|on of events after balance sheet date in forming t_helr.conclusmns on going concern.

Based on the work we have performed we have not identified any matenal uncertainties relating to events -
or condutlons that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company'’s ability to continue
as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised .
for issue.

* Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors wnth respect to gomg concern are described in
the relevant sectlons of this report. .
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‘_ Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

Key audit matters '

Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest
effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the
engagement team. These matters were -addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We summarise below the key audit matters in forming our opinion above, together with an overview of the
principal audit procedures performed to address each matter and our key observatlons arising from those
procedures. ' : :

. These matters, together with our fi ndmgs were commumcated to those charged W|th governance through
~our Audit Completion Report.

.| Key Audit Matter » ' How- our scope addressed this matter

Valuation of healthcare claims
outstanding and ‘loss adjustment
expenses: o _
We considered. the directors’ assessment of the
valuation of healthcare claims by performing the
following procedures:

e Assessed the design and implementation

have been incurred but not reported (IBNR) and tested the operating effectiveness of the

involves significant estimate and judgement, : Eeyltﬁontrols ?routnlo bt?? v.aluation- of the
with £188m provided at 31 December 2021. . eaithcare contract liabiiities;

Further details are set out in the accounting e For a sample of business types, we
policy and ,note 23 in the financial performed data integrity testing and
statements. confirmed that the data used in the reserving
' models was consistent with the audit work

performed over claims paid; and

The estimation of the -liability to customers
which the Company may have to pay in
‘respect of outstanding healthcare claims and
associated loss adjustment expenses that

This involves management making a best- v
estimate of the ultimate cost of all claims  Tested IT general controls and tested the
incurred but not reported at 31 December completeness and accuracy of key system- |
2021, together with the related costs of . generated ‘reports used in calculatung the | -
settling the claims. : technucal provision.

Our audlt team included actuarial specnallsts who

" A range of statistical and actuarial methods
performed the foIIowmg procedures:

‘are used to build models which estimate the

liability for claims not yet reported or where + Evaluated the methodology and assumptions
an insufficient amount has been provided. selected by management. This included

, ] : “meeting with senior management involved in
Healthcare claims tend to be paid relatively the reserving methodology, and reviewing-
quickly and the assumptions underlying the ~ changes in assumptions from the previous | -
estimate are related to the historical cost of . yearend, ‘
claims notified, cost of settling the claim and « ' Performed " independent projections on
the pattern of the timing of the payment of selected classes of business and compared
claims historically, which are used in the the results with the reserves calculated by the
models-to project what might be paid out to | . Company;

customers. .o Performed an actual vs. expected analysus
: B .on the paid claims data; and
e Benchmarked the Company’s loss ratios

An' additional amount is provided: by ~against the UK medical expense market.

management to reflect the risk that using
historical data may not capture all future
uncertainties. A - provision is also made
where the cost of claims is in dispute with the Our observations

healthcare provider. . We found the technical provision established by the
' Company acceptable.-

5
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Pandemic résponse — customer promise
and reconsideration of the premium
‘earning pattern :

In the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company announced the ‘customer
-promise’, which committed the Company to
providing a rebate to certain healthcare
policyholders in the first quarter of 2022
should the average loss ratio in the years
ended 2020 and 2021 combined ‘be lower
than the loss ratio in the year ended 31
December 2019.. The rebate applies only to
UK small and medium companies - and
individual policy holders. :

For-the year ended 31 December 2021, a
customer rebate of £31m was recognised
within the provision for unearned premium.
Further details are set out in note 23 in the
“fi nanmal statements.

Due to the continuation of the UK national
lock-down until February 2021, the Company
experienced a lower level of healthcare
claims incurred in the first quarter of the year
in comparison to the first quarter in previous
years. For the second and third quarter of the
year the Company experienced a steady
increase in claims compared to prior years:
However, in the last quarter of 2021, the
Company recorded steeper levels of claims
compared to the last quarters of prior years.
The higher-than-normal level of claims
incurred-in the last quarter is attributed to the
‘catch up’ on treatments that would otherwise
have been completed and claimed in the
year ended 31 December 2020 and earlier
part of 2021 if there had been no Covid-19
pandemic. The surge in claims catch-up in

continue into 2022 and as a result in order to
-| align the premiums earning pattern with the

been recognised in the provision for
unearned premium as at 31 December 2021.
Further details are set out in note 23 in the
financial statements.

‘| We deemed these arrangements to be a key
audit- matter due to the complexity, 'unique

We also separately considered the

the final quarter of 2021 is expected to

incidence of risk, a provision of £66m has-

nature, the accounting treatment and use of '

We considered, the directdrs assessment of the |
impact of the customer promise by performlng the.
following procedures:

« Assessed the design and implementation of
. the key controls around customer promise;
e Challenged management's  accounting
treatment. of the customer promise and.
ensured that the recognition is in line with the
requirements of the accounting standards;
¢ Reviewed and re-performed the calculations
_performed by management in determining
the customer promise rebate accrual; and
e Reviewed the ‘disclosures in the financial
statements in respect of the customer
promise and checked them for compliance
with relevant accounting standards. .

directors’
assessment of the recognition- of the additional
unearned premium provision by performing the
following procedures:

e - Evaluated ‘and challenged the

" .. appropriateness of the methodology and key
assumptions selected by management in
determining the impact of the premium
earning pattern;

+ Reviewed the key data inputs that were used
to determine the premium earning pattern
provision = adjustment for  unearned
premiums; and

e Reviewed the disclosures in the financial
_statements in respect of the premium earning
profile and checked them for compliance with
relevant accounting standards.

?

Our observations

We found the provision for unearned premiums in
respect of the customer promise and reconsideration
of the premium earning pattern established by the-
Company ~ acceptable and - the disclosures
appropriate. : )

subjective assumptions.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

The scope of our audit was influenced by our applrcatlon of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds

for materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us:to determine the scope of our audit

and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items

and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and on the financial

~ statements as a whole. Based on our professional judgement we determined materiality for the financial
,statements as a whole as follows

Overall materiality ' Our overall materiality was set at £15.5m
How we determined it 1% of earned premiums
Rationale for benchmark applied In determining our materiality, we considered financial metrics

which we believe to be relevant, and concluded that net
earned premiums, was the most relevant benchmark. We
believe that the benchmark of net earned premiums is a fair
reflection of revenue from the Company’s operations.

_Performance materiality Performance materiality is set to reduce to an” appropriately
' low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and
undetected misstatements in -the financial statements
‘exceeds materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

We set performance materiality at £11 6m whrch represents
75% of overall materiality.

Reporting threshold - - | we agreed with_the directors that we would report to them
: ) misstatements identified during our audit above £0.8m as well

: as misstatements below that amount that, in our view,

. . ) warranted reporting for-qualitative reasons. o

As part of designing our audit, we assessed the risk of material misstatement in the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and then designed and performed audit procedures responsive to those risks.
In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjectlve judgements, such as making assumptions
on signifi cant accounting estimates. :

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed sufficient work to be able to give an opinion
on the financial statements as a whole. We used the outputs of our risk assessment, our understanding of
the Company, it's environment, controls, and critical business processes, to consider qualitative factors to
ensure that we obtained sufficient coverage across aII financial statement line items.

The Company has also established certain operational shared service centres oversea$. This..includes
shared services in France, such as ‘Centre of Excellence’ investment management, and performance of
certain financial control activities to support the production of the Company'’s financial information including
" IT functionality .and controls. Specified procedures were performed over these shared service centres

respectively by our component auditors who are based in France, in accordance with our instructions.

. )y .
We determined the level of involvement we needed as the Company auditor. in.the audit work of the
component auditors to be able to conclude whether sufficient and appropriate audit evidence was obtained
to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements as a whole. We maintained regular and timely
communication with our component audit teams, including discussions, phone calls and written instructions,
and'reviewed their work, where appropriate.

Other information

" The other information comprises the mformatron included in the Annual Financial Report other than the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
-otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is. to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material. misstatements, we are required to
determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
-information, we are required to report that fact. : :

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our oplnlon based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ Report for the fi nancnal year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the Strategic report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance W|th appllcable Iegal
requirements. :

Matters on which we are required to report by exceptlon

o] Ilght 'of the knowledge and understanding. of the Company and-its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not_identified material misstatements in the Strategic report or the Directors’ Report.

We have nothlng to report in respect of the foIIowrng matters in relation to whrch the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records_have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

e the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or :
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Reéponsubllltles of Directors

. As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 12 "the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. ’

In proparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. : )

- Auditor’s responsrbl_lltles for the audit of the financial statements -

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
- free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it-exists.
. Misstatements can arise from fraud’or error and are conS|dered'matenaI if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to mﬂuence the economic deC|S|ons of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements. .

Irregularmes including fraud, are instances of non-compllance with laws and' regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detectlng |rregular|t|es '
including fraud is detailed below.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

Based on our understanding of the company and its industry, we considered that non-compliance with the
foIIowmg laws and regulations might have a material effect on the financial statements: breaches of
regulatory requirements of the Prudential Regulation Authorlty (‘PRA’) and the Financial Conduct Authority-
(‘FCA"), Data Protection Act, the UK GDPR,.the Bribery Act, and the Proceeds of Cnme and Anti-Money
Laundering. ,

To help us identify instances “of non- compliance with these laws and regulations, and in identifying and
assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect to non-compliance, our procedures mcluded but
were not limited to: : -

s Atthe planning stage, gaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the -
Company and the industry in which it operates, and considering the risk of acts by the Company which
were contrary to the applicable laws and regulations, including fraud;

.. Inquiring of the directors, management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance as to
* whether the Company is in compliance with laws and regulations, and discussmg their policies and
procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations; .
 Inspecting correspondence with relevant licensing or regulatory authorities mcluding the PRA and FCA,; -

» Reviewing minutes of directors’ meetings in the year; and

« Discussing amongst thé engagement team the Iaws and regulations listed above, and remammg alert
to any indications of non-complrance ,

We also consrdered those other laws and regulations that have a direct impacton the preparation of financial
statements, such as the Companjes-Act 2006 and UK tax legislation.

‘In addition, we evaluated the directors’ and management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent
manipulation of the financial statements, including the risk of management override of controls, and -
determined .that the principal risks related to postiig manual journal entries to manipulate financial

performance, management bias through judgements and assumptions in significant accounting estimates,
in particular in relation to the valuation of healthcare claims outstanding and loss adjustment expenses, the -
pandemic response — customer promise and reconsideration of the premium earning pattern, the presumed
risk of fraud in relation to revenue recognition (which we pinpointed to the potential to inappropriately record
revenue in the wrong period, due to either the estimation of pipeline premium or the calculation of unearned
,pre‘miums specifically relating'to the: pandemic response), and significant one-off or unusual transactions.

Our procedures in relation to fraud included but were not limited to

o Making enquiries of the directors and management on whether they had knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged fraud; .
Gaining an understandrng of the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud
Drscussrng amongst the engagement team the risks of fraud; and
Addressing the risks of fraud through management override. of controls by performing Journai entry
testing. : .

The primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of irregularities, including fraud, rests with both

those charged with goverhance and management. As with any audit, there remained a risk of non-detection

of |rregulant|es as these may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal controls

The risks of material misstatement that had the greatest effect on our audit are dlscussed in the “Key audit
’ matters section of this report '

A further description 'of our r'esponsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report. ’
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
Other matters which we are reqmred to address

Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we were appointed on 19 December 2013 to audit
‘the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 and subsequent financial periods. The period
of total uninterrupted engagement is 9 years, covering the: years ended 31 December 2013 to 31 December

2021,

" The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC'’s Ethlca1 Standard were not provrded to the Company and we
remain independent of the Company i in conductlng our audit.

Our audit’ oplnlon is consistent with our additional report to the audit commlttee

Use of the audit report

This report is made solely to the Company’s members as a body in accordance wrth Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not -accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company’s members asa body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

T TR T IO

\

Leanne Finch (Senior Statutory Auditor) for and on behalf of Mazars LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Tower Bridge House

St Katharine's Way

London E1W 1DD

25 March 2022

.19



‘

' ' . Registered Number: 031481 19
AXA PPP healthcare limited : e '

Profit and Loss Account
fo_r the year ended 31 December 2021

General business technica_l account’

2021 2020

Note . £m 0 fm .
Gross premiums written ' ' 2 1,562 - 1,557
- Outward reinsurance premiums . ‘ (28) (29)
- Net premiums written S . ©.1,534 ' 1,528
Change in provision for unearned premiums . . _ : i .
- gross amount : : o 19 T (124)
- reinsurers’ share ' . - - (2)
Net change in provision for unearned premiums: : ‘ 19 - (126)
Earned premiums, net of reinsurance . o ) . 1,653 ‘ S 1,402
-Claims paid . : B v 4
- gross amount . ‘ ' L . S - (1,100). - g (927)
_ - reinsurers’ share . ' e ' 26 : 20
Total claims paid . S (1,074) (907)
Chahge in the provision for claims »
- gross amount : . ’ (1) s 17)
- reinsurers’ share : L ] : ' (1) (1)
Total chang_e in provision for claims . , .(12) . .(18)
" Claims incurred, net of reinsurance - . \ (1,086) _ (925)
Acquisition expenses o 3 (228) (220)
Administration expenses 4 (134) (148)
Net operating expenses : - . ' (362) (368)
- Balance on the technical accbunt for generai o . L . . X
" business. : ) - - N 105 109 .

~ " All transactions relate to contihuing operations. -
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Profit and Loss Account (continued) -
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Non-technical account

AY

Registered Number: 03148119

- 2020

. 2021
Note £m €m -

Balance on the general business technical account: 105 109

- Investment income o 6 37 29
Net unrealised (losses)/gains on investments at fair value ) . :
through profit and loss 7 9) 14
Investment expenses and charges 8 (13) -(29)
Other operating income 9 27 25
Other operating expenses ) 10 (32) (32)
Total balance on the non-technical account 10 7
Profit on ordi'nafy activities before tax 115_‘ 116
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 11 ,(22) (23)
Profit for the financial year 93, 93

All transactions relate to continuing operations.

The information on pages 26 to 69 forms an iritegral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
“for the year ended 31 December 2021
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2021 2020
Note ~ £m £m
Profit for the financial year after tax 93 . 93
Other comprehensive income:
‘Iltems that may be subsequently reclassified through profit
and loss
’ Investments classified as avallable for sale
Fair value gains ’ 5 5
Fair values losses transferred to proflt and loss on disposal '
of AFS assets (2) (7)
Fair value (losses)/gains on derlvatlves in a cash flow hedge . ©(2) A
Tax effect of items recognised in other comprehensrve income C
— current tax and deferred tax ) . 1 (1) 2
Other comprehensuve income net of tax - 1
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to -
93

thg equity shareholders of the Company

94

All transactions relate to continuing operations.

'Th,e information on pages 26 to 69 forms anintegral part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2021

2021 2020

Note _ Em ~ _£m
ASSETS ‘ ' : :
Intangible assets ’ : :
Goodwill : : 12 . '8 ‘ .. 8
Other intangible assets ’ 12~ 25 1
Total intangible assets : , : 33 19
Investments . . .
Land and buildings . - ST 13 - 47 | 45
_ Other financial investments ‘ - - -
Shares and other variable yield secuntles ' 14 215 . 217
* Debt and other fixed income securities o -14 647 : " 602
Derivative financial instruments - 14,26 - 18 - . 16
Loans and receivables . 14 " 15 : - .16 -
Total investments : 942 896
Remsurers share of technical provisions .
Provision for unearned premiums 15 6 . 6
Claims outstanding and loss adjustment expenses = 15 ) - 1
Total reinsurers’ share of technical provisions - N : 7
Debtors o . 4
Debtors arising from direct insurance operations 16 © 358 360.
Debtors.arising from reinsurance operatlons . 16 . 72 79 -
Other debtors . - 17 : 35 . 35
Total debtors K » ’ - 465 474
Other assets - ¢ : .
Tangible assets ’ .18 , 1 o1
. ___Cash at bank and in hand : : 46 .. 58
Total other assets I 47 . 59
- Prepayments and accrued income ’ ) .
Deferred acquisition costs 19 : 97 - 75°
Deferred tax asset - : ' 20 - -
Prepayments and accrued income - . -5 - 4
Total prepayments and accrued income : 102 L 79

TOTAL ASSETS ‘ T . 1,595 1,534
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. Registered Number: 03148119
AXA PPP healthcare Ilmlted :

Balance Sheet (contmued) SN '
as at 31 December 2021 ’

2021 . 2020

Note - ' £m £m

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES -

Capltal and reserves L :
Called up share capital . ' 2 o -185 ”. 185
Revaluation reserve . - 22 . 18 _ 18
Profit and loss account ‘ B e 4 195 ' 157

. Equity shareholder’s funds ; . » 398 - © 360 o
" “Technical provisions- o _ ' '
Provision for unearned premiums .23 . 752 ‘ 771
Claims outstanding and loss adjustment expenses . 23 188 : 177

Tptal technical provisions ) . 940 948 -

Provnsuons for other nsks ] . _ ' _
~ Other] prowsnons s ‘ ’ 24 18 . 12 .

Creditors o ‘ : S
Creditors arising from direct insurance operations 25 - 48 : © 47
Creditors arising from reinsurance operations 25 - -8 . 26 X
Derivative financial instruments .26 _ 8 . .9
Other creditors including tax and social secunty .21 123 99
Borrowings 28 30 . .-

Total creditors C _ ) , . T 217 . .. 181

Accruals and deferred income . . ' 29 ‘ 22 ' 33 .

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES g . 1,595 - 1,534

The financial statements on pages 20 to 69 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
‘Directors on 22 March 2022 and were signed on 25 March 2022 on behalf of the Board by:

R‘.J.A. Moquet o ' . o "
- Director : -

Type text here



AXA PPP healthcare limited

Statement of Changés in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2021

- Registered Number: 03148119 -

Profit

Called up - .
share Revaluation and loss A
capital reserve  account Total
2021 £m £m £m ~ £m
Balance as at 1 January 185. 18 157 360
Profit for the year - - 93 93 .
Other comprehensive income: '
Fair value gains on available for sale fnancnal )
~assets . - 3. - 3
. Fair value losses on derivatives in a cash .

- - flow hedge - (2) - . (2)
Tax effect of items recogmsed in other . ‘
comprehensive income — deferred tax - (1) - (1)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 93 93

- Transactions with owners: :
Dividend paid (29.7p per share) . - - (55) (55)
Balance as at 31 December 185 18 195 . 398
Called up . Profit
share Revaluation andloss - .

capital .. = reserve account Total

2020 £m ‘ £m £m £m
Balance as at1 January 185 17 - -134 336 -

‘ Proﬂt for the year ) - - 93 93

Other comprehensive income:

-Fair value losses on avallable for saIe

financial assets - (2) - (2)

Fair value gains on denvatlves ina cash flow

hedge . - 1. - 1

Tax effect of items recogmsed in other : ‘

comprehensive income — deferred tax . .~ - 2 - 2

Total compre'hensive income for the year - 1 "93 94

Transactions with owners: :
Dividend paid (37.8p per share) - - (70)  {(70)

“Balance as at 31 December 185 18

157 ..

The information on pages 26 to 69 forms an integral part of these financial statements.

25

360



: S R . Registered Number: 03148119
AXA PPP healthcare limited ‘

Notes to the Financial Statements

_as at 31 December 2021

General Information s B | ,
The Company underwrites medical insurance business mainly in the United Kingdom (“UK”).

The Company is a private limited liability company limited by shares under the Companies Act 2006 and is
incorporated and domiciled in the UK. The address of its registered office is 20 Gracechurch Street, London,
EC3V 0BG. : ~

Prmcrpal accountmg policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
.* below. These policies have been consistently applled to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated. :

BaS|s of preparation

. The ‘financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance wrth Financial Reportlng

_Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ (“FRS 101”). The financial statements have been
prepared on a .going concern basis under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of available for sale financial investments and financial instruments at fair value through prof it or Ioss
and in.accordance with the Companies Act 2006. ;

The Company has considerable financial resources and detailed budgets, plans and forecasts have
been prepared and reviewed setting out the continued financial position of the Company for the next
12 months-and a strategic plan to 2023. The directors consider that the financial impact of the COVID-
19 virus on the UK economy and the Company is not currently estimable with any degree of certainty.
In considering the potential impact on the Company, the directors have prepared various financial

. pro;ectlons which incorporate the impact on trading, unemployment levels, financial markets and GDP,
‘covering short, medium and longer-term tnme scales. : :

The directors believe that the Company is well placed to manage its business risks despite the current
uncertain economic outlook, and the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Annual Financial Report

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 101 requires management to monitor
and exercise judgment in the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies and in the
use of accounting estimates. Those areas that could have a srgnuflcant impact to the fi nan0|al
statements are set out in accounting policy XXVI.

- The Company holds goodwill at cost less any impairment losses, whllst this represents a departure
from the treatment prescribed by the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and
Reports) Regulations 2008 to hold goodwill at cost less accumulated amortisation, the directors believe

" that this accounting policy choice provides a true and fair view. The ability to apply a true and fair
override when selecting an accounting policy, is set out in FRS 101, with specific instances, such.as
goodwill, referenced within Appendix Il. The effect of non-amortisation is an increase in profit for the,

~_year by £1m (2020 £1m), with the cumulative effect on net assets being an increase of £6m (2020:
£5m). ¢

In association with AXA Group and AXA Investment Managers a project was undertaken to understand
and implement the interest rate benchmark reforms on the Company’s relevant contracts. The contracts
primarily impacted by the reforms are derivatives contracts (vanilla interest rate swaps, ‘cross currency -
swaps and total return swaps), that reference IBOR (Interbank Offered Rate). As at 31 December 2021
all affected contracts have been transitioned to SONIA (Sterling Overnight: Index Average). The
transition d|d not resultin a fnancral impact on the Company

The followmg exemptions from the requirements of IFRS have been applled in the preparation of these
financial statements, in accordance with FRS 101:

(@) - Therequirements of paragraphs 45(b) and 46 to 52 of IFRS 2 ‘Share based Payment’; disclosing
the number and werghted average exercise prices of share options, and how the fair value of
goods or services recelved was determined. -
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Registered Number: 03148119

. AXA PPP healthcare limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

.
.

. as at 31 December 2021
I

Basis of preparation (contmued)

(b) The requirements of the second sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraphs 113(a), 114, 115
~ 118, 119(a) to (c), 120 to 127 and 129 of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’.
(¢) The requirements of paragraph 52, 58, and paragraphs 90, 91-and 93 of IFRS 16 Leases. .
(d) The requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ to present
comparative information in respect of:
(i) paragraph 79(a)(iv) of IAS 1;
. (i) paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Eqmpment
(i) paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’; and
(iv) paragraphs 76 and 79(d) of IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’.
(e) The requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10(f), 16, 38A, 38B 38C 38D, 40A, 40B; 4OC 40D and 111
" of IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’. .
(f) The requirements of IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’. :
(9): The requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accountlng
Estimates and Errors’.
(h) The requirements of paragraphs 17 and 18A .of IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’.

(i) The requirements in IAS 24 to disclose related party transactions entered into between two or-more

members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which is a party to the transaction is wholly owned
by such a member.

(i) The requirements of paragraphs 130(f)(ii), 130(f)(iii), 134(d) to 134(f) and 135(c) to 135(e) of IAS
36 ‘Impairment of Assets’, provided that equivalent disclosures are included in the consolidated
financial statements of the group in which the entity is consolidated.

Deferral of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, however, the amendments
to IFRS 4 'Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts’ permits entities
which meet certain requirements to defer the implementation of IFRS 9 until the effective date of IFRS
17 ‘Insurance Contracts’, 1 January 2021. On 17 March 2020 it was agreed by the IASB to extend the
effective date of IFRS 17 to 1 January 2023, at the same time the fixed expiry date for the optional
temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 granted to insurers, was. also deferred by two years to
2023.

The Company is. eligible for the temporary exemptlon and has opted to defer the rmplementatlon of
IFRS 9. The eligibility conclusion is based on an analysis of the percentage of the total consolidated
carrying amount of liabilities connécted with insurance activities relative to the total consolidated
carrying amount of all liabilities, which indicates the Company'’s activities are predominately connected
with insurance. The amendments permitting the temporary exemptlon are effective for annual periods
begmnlng on or after 1 January 2019. .

" In the context: -of the deferral of the implementation of IFRS 9, additional disclosures relatlng to the,

Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (“SPPI") test and to the credit quality of financial instruments

- that pass the SPPI test are required during the deferral period, commencing 1 January 2018. This

information is set out in the ‘Management of financial risk’ note on pages 59 to 61.
Changes in accounting standards, accounting policies and disclosures

Amendments to accounting standards effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
did not have a material impact on the Company’s fi nanc:al statements

Divisional reportlng .
The Company does not apply the requirements of IFRS 8 ‘Operating segments’, as its shares are not .

" publicly traded. In addition, substantially all of the business underwritten represents a'single class of

insurance and is the basis through which business is reported.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contmued)
- as at 31 December 2021 .

Foreign currency translation

V.

VI

a)

b)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates (the functional currency). The
financial' statements are presented in Sterling, whlch is the Companys functlonal and
presentational currency. :

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactlons are translated |nto the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of non-investment related activities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the Profit and Loss Account in either ‘other operating income’ or ‘other operating expenses’

" depending on the net position calculated at the year end. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of investment related activities denominated'in foreign currencies are
‘recognised in the Profit and Loss Account within either |nvestment mcome or ‘investment

expenses and charges’.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forelgn currencies are translated at the functlonal

currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or.
translation of monetary items are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. Changes in the fair
value of monetary securities denomunated in foreign currency classified as available for sale are

" analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the

security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. . °

Translation differences reIated to changes in amortised cost are recognised in the Profit and Loss

Account, and other changes in carrymg amount are recognised in other: comprehensuve income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. Translation differences on non- monetary items measured at fair’
value through profit and Ioss are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account as part of the fair value
gain or Ioss

Product classification

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk. A contract which transfers significant A

insurance risk is-an insurance contract whether or not it also transfers financial risk. An insurance

* contract is a contract under which the Company (the insurer) accepts significant insurance risk from

another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain
future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder. As a general guideline, ‘the
Company defines significant insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the

- occurrence of the insured event that are more than the benef ts payable if the insured event did not

occur.

The Company has no mvestment contracts, i.e. contracts that carry financial risk ‘with no significant -
insurance risk. :
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contmued)
as at 31 December 2021

Vil

General insurance contracts - recognition and measurement

The results are determined on an annual basis whereby the incurred cost of claims, commission and
related expenses are charged against the earned proportion of premiums, net of reinsurance as follows:.

- a),

».b)

Insurance premiums

Premiums written comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole period of cover provided
by medical insurance business incepted during the reporting period, recognised -on the date on
which the policy commences. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the reporting period -
for premiums receivable in respect of medical insurance busihess written in prior reporting
periods; and estimates of premiums due but not yet received or notified to the Company.

‘Unearn'e_d premiums represent the proportion of premiums written in the year -that relate to

unexpired terms of policies in-force at the balance sheet date, mainly calculated on a risk -
incidence basis. The proportron attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provrsron for
unearned premiums. . ’

Insurance clalms

Claims incurred comprise clarms and related expenses paid in the year and changes in the
provisions for outstanding claims, including provisions for claims incurred but not reported and for
claims incurred but not enough reported (“IBNR and IBNER” respectively) and related expenses,
together with any adjustments to claims from previous years.

Technical provisions

Provision is made at the year-end for the estlmated cost of claims incurred but not settled, including
the cost of IBNR claims and IBNER to the Company. The estimated cost:of claims includes
expenses to be incurred in settling claims. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that
it has appropriate information regarding its claims exposures. However, given the uncertainty in’
establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be dlfferent from the
original Ilablllty established.- :

The estimation of claims IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertalnty than the
estimation_of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Company -(that is, the IBNER
provision), where more information about the claim event is generally available.

Classes of business where claims are reported relatively quickly after the claim event tend to
display lower levels of volatility. In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims the Company -
uses a statistical analysis of historical experience, which assumes that the development pattern
of the current claims will be consistent with past experience.

Allowance is made, however, for changes or uncertainties which. may create distortions in the
underlying statistics or which might cause the cost of unsettled claims to increase or reduce wheh

. compared with the cost of previously settled claims including:

= changes in Company processes which might accelerate or slow down the development ) A

and/or recording of pard or incurred claims compared with the statistics from previous
periods;
" changes in the legal envrronment,
the effects of inflation;
_changes in the mix of business; and
the impact of large losses.

Provisions are calculated gross of any reinsurance recoveries. A separate estimate is made of the
amounts that will be recoverable from reinsurers based upon the gross provisions and havmg due
regard to collectability.

Healthcare business is short tail. The total costs of claims paid by the Company at the balance

. sheet date is used to project the expected total cost for claims incurred by reference to statistics

which show how the total cost of claims paid in previous periods’have developed over time..
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. Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
as at 31 December 2021

VIl. General insurance contracts — recognition and measurement (contlnued)

d) Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

~ Commissions and other acquisition costs that relate to unearned- premlum are capltallsed asan’
.+ 'asset and amortised over the terms of the policies as premlum is eamed All other acqunsltlon
costs are recognised as expenses when mcurred ' e

e) Llablllty adequacy test

~ At each balance sheet date, the Company evaluates its unexpired risks to assess whether there
are sufficient unearned premiums, after taking account of future investment income on the ..
investments, to cover expected future claims and expenses. If following these assessments a
- .deficiency is identified, the full deficiency is recognised as an unexpired risk reserve. -

f) " Debtors and other liabilities related to insurance and reinsurance contracts

- Debtors and other liabilities are recognised when due. These include amounts due to and from
agents, brokers and insurance contract holders. The Company assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence that the insurance receivablé is impaired. Where such
evidence exists, the Company ‘reduces the carrying amount of the insurance receivable
accordingly and recognises that impairment loss in the Profit and Loss Account.- .

VIil. ' Intangible assets
a) Goodwill

GoodW|lI represents the excess of the consideration transferred over the proportlonate interest in
fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contlngent Ilabllmes of the acqwree and the’
fair value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree. .

Goodwill is m:tlally recognised at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable
amount is calculated and compared to the carrying value. The recoverable. amount is the higher
of the fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

_If the recoverable amount is less than the carrying value, |mpa|rment is recognlsed immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed '

b)' ‘Customer related |ntang|ble

Customer related intangible assets arose through the acqursrtlon of the Slmplyhealth PMI business
and a segment of PMI policies from former fellow subsidiary, Health and Protection Solutions
Limited. These assets relate to the future income stream which will be generated through the
_renewal of insurance policies held by existing customers. The customer related intangible is
measured on initial recognition at fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, -
_ the customer related- intangible is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation:-and any
‘accumulated impairment losses. The customer related intangible is amortised- ona straight line
basis over 10 years..

‘c) Software development :
Costs associated with major software developments are capltallsed where such expenditure is
expected to generate -future economic benefits and can be reliably measured. The asset is
amortised from the point at which it starts to-generate economic benefit on the straight Ilne basis
over its estimated useful life, subject to a maximum period of 5 years.

IX. Land and buildings

Land and buildings comprise freehold property occupied by the Company. Land and buildings are
stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and an allowance for impairment, where
appropriate. Historical cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable
to bringing the asset to its worklng condition for its intended use. : ‘

Buildings are depreciated using the straight line method on the basis of thelr expected useful lives, up
to a maximum of 50 years.

Also included within this balance is the right of use asset relatlng to Ieased propertles further detall is
included within accounting polucy XX, . -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contlnued)
as at 31 December 2021

X.

Investment properties

Investment properties comprise freehold and long leasehold land and bunldlngs Investment propertles
are held for long term rental yield and/or capital apprematlon and are not occupied by the Company.

Investment properties are carried at cost less accumulated deprec1at|on and are depreciated using the
straight line method on the basis of their expected useful lives, up to a maximum of 50 years. In the
event of an unrealised loss over 15%, impairment is recognised for the difference between the net book
value of the investment property and the fair value of the asset based on an independent valuation.

Financial assets

Financial assets are ClaSSIf ed in the followmg categories: at fair value through proﬂt and Ioss available -
for sale; and loans and receivables. The classification of financial assets is determined on initial
recognition and depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired or originated.

A financial asset is recognised on the date on which the Company enters into a commitmient to
purchase or sell the asset, the trade date. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have explred or have been transferred-and the Company has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownershlp

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include financial assets held for trading and
those designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit and loss. Investments acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term are classified as held for trading. These
financial assets are recognised initially at their fair value, with transaction costs expensed in the
Profit and Loss Account; and subsequently re-measured:at fair value W|th movements in falr value
recogmsed in profit and loss. . .

b) Avallable for sale f‘nanclal assets

Available for sale financial assets mclude equnty securities, debt securities and mutua] funds.
Financial assets designated as available for sale are not classified into the categories of loans and
receivables, or financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. These financial assets are
recognised initially at their fair value, including transaction costs and subsequently measured at
fair value, with unrealised gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income in the
revaluation reserve. When the asset is -disposed or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments from the revaluation reserve are transferred to the Profit and Loss Account.

c) Loans and recelvables

"Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. These are initially recognised at cost, which is the fair
value of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment including transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment and subsequently measured at amortised .
cost using the effective interest rate method with gains and losses recognised in the Profit and
Loss Account. Other assets classifi ed as loans and receivables include ‘other debtors’ and cash
at bank and in hand’.

d)' Fair value estimation

The fair value of f nancial assets is best established through quoted prlces in an active market. An -
active market is where quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, -
broker, industry group, pticing service or regulatory agency and those prices represent actual and

regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. If the market for a financial

instrument is not active, the Company uses recognised valuation techniques to determine fair

value. Transfers between the levels of fair value hierarchy are deemed to occur at the date of

assessment. ’

Valuation techniques for level 1 instruments are quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets. Valuation techniques for level 2 investments largely consist.of evidence of arm’s length
transactions in similar assets. Valuation techniques for level 3 investments include discounted:
. cash flow ‘analysis, option pricing models and, where available, evidence of arm’s length
transactions in similar assets. :

-31



AXA PPP healthcare limited

Registered Number: 03148119

Notes to the Financial étatement_s (centinued) ,
as at 31 December 2021

XI. Financial assets (continued)

d) Fair value estimation (continued)

The inputs to these models are largely derived from observable market data, but where observable
market data are not available, management judgement is applled to factors including model risks,
liquidity risk and counterparty credit risk. . :

. Level 1 and 2 valuation techn/ques :

Asset backed securities are valued on a mark-to-market basis. in the absence of market prices or
if there are inconsistencies inherent in the prices received from contributors, proxies or mark to
model valuations approved by AXA Investment Managers are used.

‘Level 3 valuation techniques

Investments in hedge funds dre valued.: using estlmated fund pnces which are received directly

- from the fund manager.

There can be no assurance that the valuatlons on the basis of these models and methodologles '
represent the price for which a security may ultimately be sold or for which it could be sold at any

‘specific point in time. Use of different models, methodologies and/or assumptions may have a

material impact on the estimated fair value amounts and could have a matenal adverse effect on
the results of operations and f nancual condmon .

Xll. Impairment of assets

a)

b)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset has been impaired. A financial asset is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated.

An impairment loss is measured as the difference bétween the financial asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not

been incurred) discounted at the fi nancial asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through an allowance account and the amount ofthe
loss is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account: : .

If,in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously

_recognised |mpa|rment loss is reversed by adjustlng an allowance account and the amount of the
reversal is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. -

Available for sale flnanmal assets

The Company assesses at the end of each reportlng period whether there is objective evidence
that a.financial asset has been impaired. For debt securities, the Company applies the criteria
referred to in .(a) above. In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, a
‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is evidence that
the assets are.impaired. The Company treats ‘significant’ generally as 20% .and ‘prolonged’

"generally as greater than six months.

in the event of such evidénce surfacing for available for sale flnancnal assets, the cumulative loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit and
loss as a reclassification adjustment even though the financial asset has not been derecognised.
The cumulative loss is measured as the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit and loss. ’
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XIi.

X. .

‘Impairment of assets (continued)

b) Available for sale financial assets (contmued)

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale )
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit and loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the Profit and Loss
Account. An impairment loss recognised in the Profit and Loss Account on equity instruments
classified as available for sale is, not reversed through prot” it and loss, but recognlsed in other
comprehensive income.

c) . Non-financial assets

. Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
. for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in.circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assét’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the hlgher of an asset s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. :

Derivative fmanclal instruments

Derivative financial instruments include options, forward foreign exchange contracts, interest rate
swaps, credit default swaps and currency swaps. These are used to mitigate risk such as forward
currency contracts and interest rate swaps are used to hedge foreign currency risks and interest rate
risks, respectively. Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. All
derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when
the falr value is negative. .

Derlvatlve financial instruments are deS|gnated as held for tradmg and measured at fair value, .with
gains and losses recognised in profit and loss, unless they are deS|gnated an effective hedging

" instruments.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the transaction price, that'is,

the fair value of the consideration given or received. The fair value of a derivative that is not traded in

an active market is determined through valuation techniques, whose variables include mostly data from
observable markets. Valuation' techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions
between knowledgeable willing parties, if available reference.to the current fair value of another

" instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

Embedded derivatives that are not clobsely related to their host contracts and meet the defi nition of a
derivative are separately recorded and measured at fair value through profit and loss if the impact is
deemed material. : :

a) Hedge accounting
Hedge accounting recognises the offsettlng effects on profit and loss of changes in the fair values
of the hedging instrument and the hedged item. The Company designates certain derivatives as _ .
being held.for the purpose of hedglng the falr value of recognised assets or liabilities, as a fair -
value hedge. ’

The Company documents, at the inception of the transactlon the relatlonship between hedglng '
instruments and hedged items as well as_its risk management objectives and strategy for
undertaking the hedge. The Company documents the hedge effectiveness, both at inception and
on an ongoing basis, indicating the actual or expected effectiveness level of the derivatives used
in hedglng transactions in offsetting changes in the fair values of the hedged underlymg items.

b) Fair value hedge

The Company only applies fair value hedge accounting to hedge the interest rate rlsk of
designated fixed income securities. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as fait value hedges are recorded in the Profit and Loss Account, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or |Iabl|lty that are attrlbutable to the hedged risk.

Derivative financial instruments used for hedglng purposes and the movements ‘on fair value
hedges are dlsclosed in note 26.
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Xil.

XIV.

Derlvatlve financial instruments (contmued)

c) Cash flow hedge

For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effectrve portlon of the gain or loss on the
"hedging instrument is recognised.in other comprehensive income, while the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss Account. -

Amounts taken to other comprehensrve income are transferred to the Profit and Loss Account
when the hedged transaction affects profit and loss, such as when hedged financial income or
- financial expense is recognised. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or
liability, the amounts taken to other comprehensive income are transferred to the initial carrylng
amount of the non-financial asset or non-fnancual liability. -

If the hedging instrument expires -or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or
rollover, or if its' designation as a hedge is revoked, amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income remain in other comprehensive mcome until the forecast transactlon or
_firm commitment affects profit and loss.

Derlvatrve financial instruments used for ‘hedging purposes and the movements on cash flow
hedges are dlsclosed in note 26.

d) Ineffective hedge

At the end of each'month the hedge relationship is assessed usung a retrospectlve effectiveness
test. In those instances where it is determined that a hedge relationship is no longer effective,
hedge accounting ceases to be applied for that accounting period, with the accounting treatment
reverting back to that applied for equivalent non-hedged items. Movements in the fair value of
hedging instruments that represent ineffective proportions of qualifying hedge relatlonshlps are
recognised in profit and Ioss |mmed|ate|y

Tangible assets - o .

Tangible assets comprise mainly computer hardware, furniture and fittings. Tanglble assets are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and an allowance for impairment, where appropriate.
Historical cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing
the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Tangible assets are depreciated using the straight line method on the basis of their expected useful

lives of between 5 and 10 years, after taking into account the estimated residual value. .

Cash at bank and m hand

Cash comprises cash in_hand, demand deposits wrth banks and other short term highly liquid '
investments which are subject to an insignificant risk of a change in value. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities.

‘Share capital

Ordinary shares are treated as equity when the instruments incur no obligation to transfer cash or any
other asset to the holder. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments are
deducted from equity.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and when there is an
intention erther to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability S|multaneously
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XViil..

XiX.

Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognlsed in the profit and
loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In thrs case, the tax |s also recognised in other comprehensrve income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax

" The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at

the balance sheet date where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions, where appropriate, on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; or arise from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that, at the time of the transaction, .

* affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and

laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. ’

Deferred tax-assets are recogmsed only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be '
available against which the temporary differences can be utrlrsed

Deferred tax assets and Iiabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there
is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis. .

‘ Employee benefits -

Pension obligations '
Staff engaged in the Company’s activities are members of the AXA UK Pension Scheme
(“the Scheme”). The Scheme supports a number of companies in the AXA UK Group through both
defined benefit and defined contribution schemes. The defined benefit schemes share risks between
the companies in the AXA UK Group and are not facilitated by a contractual agreement or stated policy
to charge the individual companies the net defined benefit cost. As a result of various restructuring
activities and movement of staff between companies in the AXA UK Group, it is not feasible to allocate

- the defined benefit scheme assets and liabilities to individual participating companies.-Consequently,

the Company recognises its contribution payable for the period as permitted by IAS 19 ‘Employee
benefits’ for defined benefit plans that share risks between companies under common control.

The charge for pension costs principally represents the costs of providing pension benefits to the
Company’s staff in respect of their service during the year. The staff are employed by AXA PPP
Healthcare Group Limited, a fellow subsidjary, and the associated costs of providing pensions are
recharged to the Company, as the contributions become payable in accordance with the rules of the

" relevant scheme.

Borrowings .
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs_incurred. Borrowings are

' subsequently measured -at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, with movements

recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.
Borrowings represent a Irabrlrty under a repurchase agreement in accordance with which the Company ,

. received cash, recognrsed within cash at bank and in hand, and raised a liability for the repayment of

the cash.
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XXl

XXl

XX

XXV

Accruals and deferred income

Accruals are recognised when goods or services have been received or supplied but not invoiced. The

amount recognised is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, however - - .

the uncertainty is much less than for provisions. These will be recognised as creditors once invoiced.

Deferred income is money received for services that have not yet been provided. Deferred income
relating to insurance policies will be derecognised once the policies are written. Deferred income
relating- to advanced payments received for rents W|II be apportloned over the lease period that the
payments relate to.

Provrsnons

- Provisions are recogni'sed when the Company has a present legal or ebnstructive obligation as a result
of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required

to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be.-made of the amount of the obligation. The amount
recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle ‘the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. . : :
A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Company has approved a detailed and formal
restructuring plan, and the restructuring has either commenced or has been announced to those
affected. Provisions are not recognised for future operatmg Iosses .

Leases -
Lessee accounting - -

‘The Company made an assessment of whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the

contract. 'Where there is a lease, the Company recognises a nght of use asset and a lease liability at .
the commencement of the lease.

- The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial direct costs incurred and

an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or the site on which it is located and
the cost of obligation to refurbish the asset, less' any incentives received. The right of use asset is
subsequently depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The right of use asset is subject
to testlng for |mpa|rment if there is an indicator for impairment.

The.lease liability i is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the_ commencement date discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. The lease llability is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is re-measured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in lease term, or if the Company changes its assessment of

whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. '

" The Company presents right of use assets in land and burldlngs and leased llabllmes in other credltors

liabilities i in the Balance Sheet.

Non-lease components, mcludung service charges rates and utilities, have been separated from the
lease payments and reported as expenses when mcurred

Lessor accountmg

Leases are classified as operating leases where a significant proportion of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset concerned are retained by the lessor. Payments made under operating leases,
less any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to the Profit and Loss Accounton a strarght-
line basis over the lease term. :

Dividend distributions

Interim dividends are recognised as a distribution when paid‘ and final dividends are recognised as a
liability when approved by the shareholders through a written resolution.
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- XXV. Revenue recogmtlon

Revenue is measured at the falr value of the consrderatlon recelved or receivable for services rendered
and is recognlsed as follows:

a)
b)
. Vc)
d)

e)

Premiums .
Premiums from insurance contracts represent the primary source of revenue for the Company and
are detalled in paragraph Vll(a) of the accountlng policies.

Interest mcome :

Interest income is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account as it accrues and is calculated by"
using the effective interest rate method. .

Rental income

-Rental income from mvestment propertles is recognlsed iin the Profit and Loss Account on a

straight line basis over the lease term.
Dividend income

Dividend income on avallable for sale assets is recognised i in the Profit and Loss Account when

the right to receive payment is established.
Non-msuran.ce business administration fees

Non-insurance business administration fees are a management charge to recover. expenses
incurred by the Company from fellow subsidiary trust companies. They are recognlsed in the Profit
and Loss Account when costs have been incurred and then recharged.

XXVI. Critical accounting estlmates and judgements in applylng accounting pohcres

The Company makes estlmates and assumptions’ that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and Judgements are continually evaluated and based .
-on historical experience and other factors, mcludmg expectatlons of future events that are belleved to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The directors consider the following areas to involve srgnlf icant estlmates or judgments:

a) estimate of the claims outstanding and loss adjustment expenses provision — notes 23, 37

.b) estimates of the fair value of certain financial assets and derivatives — note 37 Vlic

" ¢) estimate of the earning pattern of the unearned premium reserves — note 23

2. Gross Premiums Written - Divisional information

© 2021 2020

- £fm - _£m
Primary geographical markets - o : B )
United Kingdom ’ 1,234 - 1 ,156
Rest of Europe . . . : 7 " 94
Rest of the world - - - C 257 307
Total : 1,562 - - 1,557 -
. 3. Acquisition expenses S \
o - 2021 2020
. . . ~_£m £m
Movement in deferred acquisition costs (note 19) - B 22 - (2),
Costs incurred for the acquisition of.insurance contracts: . . : :
- Expensed in the year : . (251y T (221)
- Attributable to reinsurers : ‘ v ) 1 ' 3
Total expenses for the acqwsmon of i insurance contracts . (228) . (220)

Included in the total of £228m (2020: £220m) there was £198m of commissions (2020 £167m) relating to
direct insurance business. :
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4, Admmlstratlon expenses .
2021 - 2020 .
£m " £m
‘Marketing and administrative expenses S (128) (144)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note' 13 & 18) - (3) o (3)
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note 12) . ' (3) 1) .
- Total administrative expenses ) . ) {134) o (148)

5. - Audit Fees

During the year, the Company received the foIIowmg services from the Company S audltor and the costs
incurred are as detalled below:

2021 2020
: £m £m
Audit services: ' ' -
Fees payable to the Company's audltor for the audlt of , S .
the statutory accounts : ' - (02) - . (0.2)
Non-audit services: - : N
Audit related assurance services from the Company's audltor
" including the audit of the regulatory return ’ (0.1) i (0.1)
s ~I . | .
(0.3) .(0.3)
6. Investmentincome o ‘
2021

’ : T N
Realised gains
relating to  Realised gains

investments at cost " relating to .
and at fair value - investments at
. through fair value
. Investment . shareholders’ *  through profit
£m : ‘ ' return : - ~__equity andloss Total
Investment in real estate , _ '
property at cost less depreciation 1 : . - - - ) 1
Debt instruments — avallable for - o R g ' : '
sale - 11 Co- . : - 1
Equity instruments — available for . . ‘ ) :
sale - ‘ .4 o - ’ 4
Non- consolldated mvestment o .
funds . 5 . - - < - 5
i Non-consolidated investment - :
funds avaitable for sale . ) 1 . - o - o
-Non-consolidated investment I
funds designated as at fair _ .
value through profit and loss 4 . e - : - - 4
" Derivative instruments - : . - _16 16
Investment income - 17 4 16 C 37
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6. - Investment income (continued)
‘ 2020

y . Realised gains -
relating to  Realised gains |

. investments at cost relating to
R o _and at fair value investments at
: ' ‘ . through fair value -

. Investment - " shareholders’ through profit
£m : ' return -_equity ‘and loss Total
Investment in real estate . A
property at cost less depreciation 1 - o - 1
Debt instruments — available for , - ‘ o
sale -8 - - ;)
Equity instruments — available for : ’ o
sale- - : . 9 . : - 9
Non-consolidated investment : N : :
funds n 5 - i- , 1 - 6

‘ Non-consohdated mvestment : . ‘ )

funds available for sale 1 ' , - - 1

‘Non-consolidated investment ' : : :

funds designated as atfair -

. value through profit and Ioss 4 - 1 5
Derivative instruments 1 - - 1
Foreign exchange gains 4. - - 4
Investment income S 19 9 - 1. . 29

7. Net unrealiéed gains on investments at fair value through profit and loss
2021 2020

. : £m ~_fm
Debt securities in hedge' relationships - : ' ' (15) 12
Debt securities designated as fair value through profit and loss o : 1 - -
Non-consolidated investment funds designated as fair value : ‘ ‘
through profit and loss S ‘ 1 (2)
Derivatives ) ’ i 4 . 4
Net unrealised gains on investments at fair value through _ )
profit and loss : : . (9) . 14
8. Investment expenses and charges ' . '
2021 2020
: . £m ‘ -£m
Investment management expenses - o . ' (2) @
Foreign exchange losses. - S ‘ (9) - : :
Impairment charges . ... - : R M )]
- Expense derivative instruments : ' M) o -
Realised losses on mvestments R o . ‘
Debt - - . , : - ..M
Derivatives ' o : ‘ : - o (22)
Non-consolidated funds - , ' ' 4 - (1)
Total investment expenses ‘ - (13) - (29)
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9. Other operating income

2021 , 2020

£m £m

Other income from non-insurance busmess 27 B 25
Other operating income _ 27 ‘25

‘Other income from non-insurance business is a management charge to recover expenses mcurred by the
Company from fellow subsidiary administration companies, AXA Health Servuces Limited and AXA PPP
Administration Services Limited. .

10. Other operatlng expenses

. 2021 : 2020

: £m " £m

Restructuring costs - . 4) . - (4)
Foreign exchange losses attributable to undenertlng o : 1y . - (2)
Other expenses from non- msurance business , 27) (26) -

Other operatmg expenses : 2 ' (32) (32)

_ Restructuring costs include £3m relating to an increase in the restructuring provision, as shown in note 24
and £1m relating to restructunng costs directly expensed during the year:

11. Tax. .
2021 . 2020
Note £m £m

-Current Tax: . ’ S ,

Current tax on-profit for the year : ' (21) (22)
Adjustments in respect of previous years . (1) . ' ' 2
- _Total current tax : : ' . (22) (20)
- Origination and reversal-of temporary difference 20 o - 2)
" Adjustment in respect of prior years o - , (1)
. Total deferred tax . < ‘ - - (3)
Total tax expense ’ ' « (22) - © . (23)

The-tax on profit before tax for the year fs the same as the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19%
(2020: 19%). The charge for the year can be-reconciled to the Profit and Loss Account as follows: :

2021 2020

- . £m . fm

Profit before tax ‘ ] : : 115 116
Tax at the UK rate of 19% (2020: 19%) : : o (22) (22)

Re-measurement of deferred tax — change in the UK taxrate . .~ (1) -A (1)

~ Adjustment in respect of prior periods A ' ’
_Higher tax rates on overseas earnings . ‘ : - (1)
Tax charge for the period , ‘ (22) '(23)

Tax rate for the current year remains at 19%.

- In the Spring Budget 2021, the UK Government announced that from 1 April 2023 the corporation tax rate
would increase to 25% (rather than remaining at 19%, as previously enacted). This new law was
substantively enacted on 24-May 2021. Deferred taxes at the balance sheet date have been measured
using these enacted tax rates and reflected in these financial statements. .
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~ 11. Tax (continued)

In addition to the amount charged to the Profit and Loss Account, the follbwing amounts relgting to tax have

been recognised in other comprehensive income:

2021 2020

£m £m
Current tax: Items that may be reclassifi ed subsequently to proflt
and loss:
Available-for-sale financial asseéts: (Iosses)/gams ansmg dunng the ‘ .
year : o N )] 1
Deferred tax: tems that may be reclassnfled subsequently to :
profit and loss: )
Avallable-for-sale fi nancnal assets gains arlsmg during the year - - o1

" Total income tax recognised directly in other comprehensnvé .

income } (1) . 2
12. Intangible assets ,
. Customer
. o related
Goodwill Software intangible Total
£m £fm £m .. £m
Cost ‘

. Balance as at 1 January 2021 8 13 10 31
Additions at cost - 16 : - "16
Balance as.at 31 December 2021 - 8 29 10 : 47
Accumulated amortisation ) o
Balance as at 1 January 2021 o = 7 4 11
Charge for the year ] . - -2 1 3
Balance as at 31 December 2021 . e . 9 . -8 14
Net book value as at 31 December 2021 8 ‘ 20 5 33
Net book value as at 31 December 2020 8 - : 6 . 5 19

" Amortisation charges of £3m (2020: £1m) have been charged to administration expenses (hote 4).

a)

c)

Goodwill was acquired as part of the acquisition of the Simplyhealth PMI business in 2015. The goodwill

has been allocated to the heéalthcare cash generating unit. The recoverable amount was determined
using value-in-use calculations. The value-in-use was calculated through cash flow projections based
on business plahs approved by management covering a five year period and a pre-tax risk-adjusted

" discount rate of 8.7%(2020: 8.6%). Cash flows beyond that period were extrapolated using a steady

2.5% growth rate. The key assumptions used in the cash flow projections are the increases in premiums,

~ claims and expenses. These assumptions were determined based on’historical rates.

Impairment testing of this valuation indicated that the carrying value is expected to be fully recoverable ’ ‘

_and_hence no impairment is considered necessary.

Software is all miernally developed and is bemg amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated
useful life, subject to a maximum perlod of 5 years. The additions |n the year relate to the Health and
Wellbeing mobile app and digital servicing platforms. :

Customer related intangible relates to the acquisition of the Slmplyhealth PMI business and the.
purchase of the renewal rights of a segment of PMI policies from former fellow subsidiary, Health and
Protection Solutions Limited. Both customer related intangible assets are being amortised on a straight
line basis over 10 years.
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13. Land and buildings

' Owner Occupied  Investment

Property ~  Property Total -
£m . Em’ £m
Cost : A : : ) L
Balance as at 1 January 2021 , , ‘ . 58 : 22 80
Additions . I S 5 . S 5
Disposals . . 7 I : ) - (2. {2)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 o 63 20 83
Accumulated depreciation . ' : L
Balance as at 1 January 2021 - . 25 10 35
Charge for the year . 2 . - 2
Impairment release on dJosal - () (1)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 ’ - 27 9 36
- Net book value as at 31 December 2021 36 11 47
Net book value as at 31 Decernber 2020 N . "33 - 12 A 45

I

Depreciation ex‘perrses of £2m (2020: £2m) have been charged to administration expenses.

. The owner occupled properties relating to freehold properties were valued at £55m as at 31 December 2021
(2020: £41m) on a fair value basis by Lambert Smith Hampton in 2021 and Cushman & Wakefield in 2020,

who are both independent chartered surveyors, in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuatlon Manual of
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. .

Included within owner occupied -property is £1m of property located in Tunbridge Wells which is now
classified as held:for sale because the Company is in the process of arrangrng its sale. No loss has been
recognised on its classification as held for sale. Surveyors.

Also included within owner occupied property is £6m of. assets recognised under IFRS16 Further details of
these leases are disclosed below -

Net book value of right of use assets

Buildings

: . £m.

Balance as at 1 January 2021, ~ : ‘ " ‘ 2
Additions R s - '5
Amortisation charge : ' ) ' ' (1)

Balance as at 31 December 2021 : ‘ ) , ’ s -

The investment properties were valued at £17m as at 31 December 2021 (2020: £16m) on a fair value basis
by CB Richard Ellis Limited, who ‘are independent chartered surveyors, in accordance with the Appraisal
and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. ,

.. The rental income arlsmg from investment properties amounted to £1m (2020 £1m) Thrs has been
recorded in the Profi t and Loss Account within investment income. ' .

J
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14. Other financial investments . :
o 2021 - 2020

. . , £m __&m
Shares and other variable yield securities  * . . 215 217 -
Debt and other fixed income securities o - 647 - 602
Derivative financial instruments , 18 16
Loans and receivables . C A5 16
Total financial assets B 895 851

The Company’s financial assets are summarised by measurement category in the tables to follow: -

2021 2020
_ £m . fm
Avallable for sale S ' _ 758 ' 731
Fair value through profit and loss ' 4 C 118 103
Co- Denvatlve_s held for trading - ) ) - . 14 ‘ 15
- Debt and other fixed income securities . -4 ) . 5
- Shares and other variable yield securities , B 4 100 83
Derivatives-in hedge relationships B : ’ : 4 . 1 '
Loans and receivables - ” 15 ' 16
Total financial assets . 895 851
2021 . 2020
._Available for sale financial assets ) £m _£m
Shares and other varlable yield securities — equuty securmes A ‘ ) :
- listed . 47 - 38
Debt and other fi xed income securmes ' ‘ ) , a .
- listed T - : ‘ 643 . 597
Shares and other vanable yield secuntles mutual funds , '
- unlisted- A - 68 96
Total available for sale financial assets ) 758 ‘ 731
o o . ‘ 2021 . 2020
‘Loans and receivables : . £m B £m
Broker loans . : . L 1 . S
Real estate private loans ' : ) . 14 - 15
Total loans and receivables ) 15 ' 16
15. Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions - '
' 2021 2020
£m £m
Reinsurers' share of provision for claims outstandlng and - '
loss adjustment expenses . - 1
Reinsurers' share of provision for unearned premlums "6 6
Reinsurers’ share of technical provusmns . . L ‘ 6 7

All amounts are expected to be settled wnthln one year.
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15. Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions (cdntinued)

Reinsurers’ share of provision for claims outstanding and loss adjustment expenses

2021 2020
. .. £m . £m
Balance as at 1 January ' , . A 1 ‘ 2
Reinsurers' share of claims payments made i m year ’ o (26) . ' (20)
Increase in recoverables ) , 25 ' 19
' Balance as at 31 December . a e - 1
Reinsurers’ share of provision for unearned premiums ‘ )
BN ' 2021 2020
‘ : : £m £m -
-Balance as at 1 January ' o - 6 . 8
Premiums written in the year o . 28 - 29
Premiurhs earned in the year : - . (28) O ((31)
Balance as at 31 December . - : 6 . 6
16. Debtors arising from insurance and reinsurance op_erationsA )
T 2021 2020
£m ’ £m
Debtors arising from d|rect insurance operatlons 4 _ ‘ , 358 | 360 .
Policyholders . . ' 300 . 302
‘Intermediaries o ‘ < _ ‘ 58 | 58
. Debtors arising from reinsurance operations . : 72 e 79
Total debtors arising from insurance and reinsurance operations ‘ 430 : 439

An age analysus of these debtors is included within the Management of financial rlsk note on page 59
-17. Other debtors- ' '

2021 ‘ 2020

- ) £m . fm

Amounts owed from fellow subsidiary undertakings ) . . T 25 . 28
Other . ‘ : 10 7
Total other debtors 3 : , - 35 35 -

"All amounts shown as other debtors are expected to be settled within one year.’
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18. Tangible assets

Plant and eqﬁipmént

_ . £m
Cost _ . ) .
Balance as at 1 January 2021 : o : : : "8

- Additions o L . ‘ : ' 1
Disposals - L - . (8) .
Balance as at 31 December 2021 - : _ L 3,
‘Accumulated depreciation :

. Balance as at 1 January 2021 : : ' h 7
Charge for the year ' . . ) 1
Eliminated on disposal ’ » : , (6)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 o 2
Net book value as at 31 Deceniber 2021 _ . - , 1
Net book value as at 31 December 2020 o ’

Depreciation expénses'of £1m (2020: £_1m) have been charged to administration expenses.
19. Deferred acquisition costs , .
' ' , 2021 2020
, . . a . £fm . _£m
Deferred acquisition costs as at 1. January ' _ 75 L 77
Credit to the Profit and Loss Account in the yéar ‘ 22 (2)
Acquisition costs deferred during the year - 250 208
‘Amortisation charged during the year (228) (210)
- Deferred acquisition costs as at 31 December . 97’ _ - 75
20. Deferred tax ' )
The movement on the deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows: -
' ' ' " Fixed asset B
- temporary
Deferred tax assets ‘ . : _ differences Other P Total.
£m _£m £m ’
Balance at 1 January - . S :
2021 : . : . 2 1 3
Balance as at ’ ' : .
31 December 2021 . . - ' 2 1 3
) Revaluation of .
Deferred tax liabilities ) _ financial assets Total
: : ' £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2021 : ' ; ' -~ (3) (3)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 : (3 (3)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Compahy has a legally enforceable right to do so.

|
L

.
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20. Deferred tax (continued) ° .
The foIIowmg is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reportlng purposes

12021 2020
. . . £m, £fm -
Deferred tax liabilities ' R ) N 3)
Deferred tax assets : - 3. 3
Total deferred tax ' : . - : -
21. Called up share capital ' 4
' . : . 2021 2020
: ‘Shares fm Shares £m
Issued and fully paid Ordinary shares at . : . o
31 December (Ordinary shares of £1 each) 185,000,000 185 185,000,000 185

22. Revaluation reserve

" ‘'Revaluation reserve

© AFS Cash flow .
S - : . assets ' - hedge Total
2021 0 £m’ £m £m
Balance as at 1 January N : 18 ; - 18
Fair value gains on AFS assets o 3 - .3
‘Fair value loss on derivatives in a cash flow hedge o _ o
recycled to profit and loss ~ ’ - (2) - (2)
Tax on movements taken directly to equrty deferred tax (1) - (1)
Balance as at 31 December , : 20 (2 18
Revaluation reserve
AFS Cash flow
_ : , - assets hedge . Total
2020 _ ___£m - £m £m
- Balance as at 1 January ' k : .18 1 - 17
Fair value losses on AFS assets ' " (2) o - (2)
Fair value gains on derivatives in a cash flow hedge ) )
recycled to profit and loss . C - 1 1
- Tax on movements taken directly to eqwty deferred tax. 2 - 2
Balance as at 31 December : _ 18 - ' 18

" The revaluation reserve contalns the movement in the f nanC|aI assets as described in the accountrng pollcy
in note 1 Xl (b). .
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2021 2020
D £m £m
Balance as at 1 January : . . . 18 17
Fair value gains/(losses) * : 3 (2)
Amortisation charge S I e 5 e
Amortisation release . ) (4) .
Impairment charge , » o o1 1
Impairment release ' ' (3) 1)
Net realised losses ' » . (2) 1)
Fair value gains on AFS assets - : : 7 6
Fair value (losses)/gains on cash flow hedge recycled to profit B
andloss . 7 (2) 1
Tax . L (1) 2
Balance as at 31 December - g o : 18 18
23. Technical provisions
' 2021 2020
: _ , £m £m
Provision for claims outstanding and loss adjustment expenses ' 188 177
Provision for unearned premiums ‘ B 752 .1
Total technical provisions : 940 948
Settlement period for claims outstandlng o
Less than 12 months- ! : ] - 162 162
- Greater than 12 months R . 26 15
‘Balance as at 31 December 188 177
‘Provision for claims outstanding and loss adjustment expenses ]
2021 2020
. ] £m £m
Balance as at 1 January : . 177 160
Total claims payments made in the year . . (1,100) (927)
Increase in liabilities ‘ . 1,11 -944
Balance as at 31 December - 188 177

Insurance provusnons are estimates, actual experience of claims costs and expenses may vary from figures
antnmpated in the- reserving estimates. The following table shows the impact on profit before ‘tax of .
reasonably possible variations in the assumptlons used to calculate the. carrying value-of the insurance

contract |labl|ItleS at the year end.

Increase in claims. Increase in expenses

2021 » . , ) ‘
Change in variable . ‘ 5% 10%
Reduction in profit net of reinsurance before tax - _£9m - £0.4m
2020 ‘ . . ' o

Change in variable ) : 5% 10%
Reduction in profit net of reinsurance before tax ‘ £9m £0.4m-
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23, Technical provusmns (continued) -

Provision for unearned premiums .

2021 2020
- . £m £m

" Balance as at 1 January - R S 771 647
Premiums written in the year . o . 1,562 - 1,657
Premiums earned in the year - o , (1,581) (1,433)

Balance as at 31 December . ) . 752 771

The proportion of wniten premiums earned in the year is comparable to pnor year, and -again includes a
change in the assumed earning pattern of premiums and an additional rebate provision for the return of.
premlums to members arising from the conclusion to AXA Health's Customer Promises.

The insurance risk prof ile of in-force contracts has altered in the pandemic due to treatment delays arising
from the disruption experienced within private healthcare systems both in the UK and internationally. Earned
premiums have been deferred into 2022 by an additional £66m (2020: £31m) to align with the continued
expected catch-up in incurred claims. The revised earning pattern reflects the exceptional change in risk
profile of contracts due to.the pandemic impact by aligning to the forecast of incurred claims including the
expected catch-up. The adjustment is based on the estimation of the value of deferred treatments still
outstanding and the expected timing of the catch-up. A combination of prior claims experience and
judgement on the availability and capacity of healthcare services for treatnients in 2022 has been made

- A provision of £31m (2020: £31m) is held within unearned premium for the refund of premiums to members .
arising from the conclusion of AXA Health Customer Promise. The rebate payable to these' members reflects

a return of profits arising from lower claims performance in 2020 and 2021 compared to the pre- pandemuc'
baseline performance of 2019. )

Claims development tables K

The development of insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Company's ability to estimate the ultimate
value of claims. The top half of each table below illustrates how the Company's estimate of total claims
outstanding for each accident year has changed at successive year-ends. The bottom half of the table
reconciles the cumulatlve claims to the amount appearing in the balance sheet.

An accudent-year baS|s is con3|dered to be most approprlate for the business written by the Company

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Total

Accident year - Gross ' : £m £m £m £m . £m £m
Estimate of ultimate claims costs: _ ‘ ' , : '

- atend of accident year - 1,057 1070 1,118 - 955 1,116 5,316

- one year later 1,037 © - 1,064 1,109 948 © . 4148

- two years later . . . 1034 1,052 1,105 ' 3,192

- three years later - . 1,034~ 1,058 . v 2,092

- four years later * . 1,035 5 C 1,035
Current estimate of cumulative claims _ 1,035 1,058 1,105 948 -+ 1,116 5,262
Cumulative payments to date 1,035 . 1,048 1,103 934 954 5,074
Liability recognised in the balance sheet - 10 2 14 . 162 ' 188
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2019
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18

o 2017 2018 2020 2021 Total
Accident year - Net £m £m £m £m £m- £m
- Estimate of ultimate claims costs: ' . _ '
- at end of accident year ' 1,039 1,054 1,097 940 1,116  5.246
. - one year later 1,019 1,036 1,084 948 14,086
- two years later . 1,017 1033 1105 3,155
- three years later 1,016 1,058 2,074
- four years later 1,035 1,035
. Current estimate of cumulative claims 1,035 1,058 1,105 . 948 1,116 5,262
Cumulative payments to date 1,035 1,048 - 1,103 934 954" 5,074
: Ltability recegnised in the balance sheet - 10 12 14 162 188
24, Other provisione '
) Inte;'national " - Restructuring Sharebased  Leases Total
IPT Provision provision payments ' :
" £€m £m £m £m £m
‘Balance as at 1 January 2021 8 4 - - 12
Additional-provision - - 1 1
"-Increase in existing provisions - 4 1 - 5
Balance as at 31 December 2021 8 8 1 1 18
2021 2020
_ . - _£m £m
To be settled within 12 months 13 12
- To be settled after 12 months 5 -
Total 12

a) Interriational IPT provision

Prowsnon in respect of msurance premium related tax due to forelgn tax authorlttes where the value and . .
‘timing of the payments are uncertain. :

b) Restructurlng proyusnon

The restructuring provision relates to costs associéted with an internal business review.

¢) Share based payments

"Share based payments relate to the share based compensatlon prowsmn and comprises the future costs
of ‘certain employee share schemes. The provision 'is expected to be utilised in line with the 3 year
performance period attached to the particular share-based payment scheme
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- 25, Creditors arising from msurance and reinsurance operatlons

2021 - : 2020

S o L £m £m

Direct insurance liabilities A S .. 48 47
Reinsurance liabilites ' : 8 26
Total insurance and reinsurance liabilities - : : 56 73

Allamounts are payable within one_year of the balance sheet date.
26. Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Whilst only a small number of derivative instruments, namely interest rate swaps, assets swaps and cross
currency swaps qualify for hedge accounting, the primary objective for holdmg derivative instruments is to-
provide economic hedglng of a risk.

Economic hedging strategues include (i) managing interest rate exposures on fixed maturity investments, (ii)
managing exchange rate risk on foreign-currency denominated investments and (i) managing liquidity
positions in connectron with asset-liability management and local regulatory reqwrements for insurance
operations.

in the narrative and tables below, both notional and fair value amounts are shown The notional amount is
the most commonly used measure of volume in the derivatives market. However, it is not used as a measure -
of risk because the notional amount greatly exceeds the possible credit market loss that could arise from
such transactions, as it does not represent the amounts actually exchanged by the parties. The Company
is exposed to credit risk in respect of its counterparties to the denvatlve instruments, but is not exposed to
credit risk on the entire notlonal amounts. .

As of 31 December 2021 the notional amount of all derlvatlve instruments - totalled £1 429m (2020 _
_£1,373m). Their net fair value as of 31 December 2021 totalled £10m (£7m at the end of 2020)

Instruments qualifying for hedge accounting

During the year the Company used one type of fair value macro hedge (portfollo baStS) as part of its risk
management strategy to reduce the Company’s exposure to lnterest rate fluctuations of fixed income
securities.

The portfollo hedge represents a portfollo of fixed income securities with similar risk profiles, which are
hedged using a number of interest rate swaps and-interest rate swap forwards. A portfolio hedge allows the
designation of the whole or part of a portfolio of assets with similar risk exposures. The hedged item is -
designated based on interest rate sensitivities, -taking into account the expected maturity, to match the
hedging derivative. ’

The cash flow hedges effectively hedge the income stream from inflation linked UK treasury bonds over the
lifetime of the asset, which mature in 2024, 2027 and 2028. There was no ineffectiveness recorded from the
cash flow hedges during the period. The movement in fair value is recognlsed in other comprehenswe
income at the end of the reporting period.

Further detalls of these derlvatlve instruments are provrded in the table below

2021 . ' : 2020 .
. Contractual/ » Contractual/ - '
_ Derivative financial - -Notional - ’ Notional )
_ instruments _ < Amount - Asset Liability Amount Asset Liability
. £m £m £m £m  £m £m
Interest rate swaps — fair : ) )
-value hedge . 487 4 (1 463 1 (2)
Asset swaps —cash flow -
hedge 20 A - (2) . + 20 - -
Cross currency swaps — . , : , '
cash flow hedge . 2 - - - ' 13 - -

Total o . - 519 .4 (3) 496 . 1 - (2)
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26. Derivative financial instruments and hedging (continued)

Losses on fair value hedges
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2021 2020
£m £m
Hedged items attributable to in’teresf rate risk : -(15) 12
Hedge instruments — macro : . 13 (13) -
: ‘ (2) (1)

Instruments not qualifying for hedge accounting »

A number of derivative instruments either do not qualify for hedge accodnting as set out by IAS 39 'Financial
instruments: Recognition and Measurement’, or the Company has taken the decision not to adopt hedge

accounting in respect of these instruments.
Further details of these derivative instruments .are provided in the table below.

.‘Fair value through profit and loss

2021 . - 2020

‘Contractual/ , Contractual/
- Derivative financial i Notional : - Notional .
instruments - . Amount Asset Liability -7 Amount Asset-Liability
£m £fm - £m . fm | £m ‘Em
_Foreign exchange forwards M 14 (5) 617 14 (7)
Credit default swaps =~ = . 18 - - 19 - -
Index options ‘ 181 - - 241 1 -
Total o 910 14 (5) - 877 15 (7)
27. Other creditors including tax and social security .
2021 2020
. . : A £m " £m
Amounts owed to fellow subsidiary undertakings ’ s 79 61
Other tax payables ' o ‘ 39 37
Lease liabilities ' ' ' ’ 5- 1
Total other creditors including tax and social security 123 99

Included within amounts owed to fellow subsidiary undertakings is £67m (2020: £42m) in respect of current

tax liabilities due to be group relieved.

28. Borrowings

*

2020

2021
. . £m - -£m
Liability under repurchase agreement ‘ ) 30 -
29. Accruals and deferred income
' 2021 2020
' . - 4 £m £m
Total accruals and deferred income C . ’ 22 3

33

All accruals and deferred income are expected to be settled within one year of the date of the financial

statements.
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30. Retirement benefit obligations
AXA UK Pension Scheme

Staff engaged in the Company s activities are members. of the AXA UK Pensron Scheme which embraces
a number of companies in-the AXA UK Group. The Scheme' has both defined benefit and defined
contribution sections but the Company is unable to accurately identify its share of the underlying assets and
liabilities of the defined benefit section. Thereis no contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the
net defined benefit cost to the Company, as such the Company has recognised within the financial
statements a cost equal to its contribution for the period. On 31 August 2013 the AXA UK Pension Scheme
closed to both new members and future accrual and all remaining active members moved to deferred status.

Responsibility for the governance of the plan, including investment decisions, contribution schedules and
scheme administration, lies with a single trustee board consisting of company appointed directors and
member nominated directors. Additionally, the Law Debenture Pension -Trust Corporatlon is a dlrector '
actlng on behalf of the Trustee board with Special Dlrector status. .

The AXA UK Group pension scheme is targeted to be fully funded over a ten year time honzon (2031)
contributions are payable in the event that the funding deficit is below a pre-agreed anticipated level. The
level of contrlbutlons to be paid under the funding deficit recovery plan are based on the actuarial valuation
performed every three years, however, these may change more frequently if significant events occur in the .
year. Following the 2021 triennial actuarial valuation, it was agreed between the Trustee and AXA UK that
over the next annual reporting (2022) period the contributions to be paid will-be nil as a prepayment was
" made in respect of the obligations in 2021 of £88m. The assumptions adopted for the triennial actuarial
valuations are determined by the Trustee and are normaIIy more prudent than the assumptions adopted for
IAS 19 purposes, which are on a best estimate basis. '

An internal review by AXA UK of the defined benefit scheme revealed an IAS 19 surplus of £376m as at 31
December 2021 (£283m surplus as at 31 December 2020). This represents a snapshot of the present cost

" of meeting pension obligations that will crystallise over-a period of many years. The Scheme invests in a
wide range of assets, including equities, which over the long term, are expected by the Directors to meet
the liabilities of the scheme:

The total pension cost which has been charged to the Profit and Loss Account of the Company is £20m
(2020: £16m), of which £20m:(2020: 15m) relate to the defined contribution- scheme The outstanding -
contributions as at 31 December 2021 are £2m (2020: £1m)

" The pnnclpal assumptions used by the actuaries were: |
S 2021 2020

. Discount rate , o - © 1.88% - 1.45%
Future pension increases . 3.07% 2.75%
Inflation assumption for deferred members (CPI) - o ' - . 2.40% 1.88% -

The discount and inflation rates disclosed within the above table represent single equivalent rates based on
the cashflow profile of the scheme. The 2021 and 2020 valuations have been calculated on a full yield curve
rather than a single rate, as this methodology provides a more accurate approach that is better allgned with
a general move in the market to use a market consistent approach in valumg the llabllltles

The key risk to the entlty is the valuation of the scheme liabilities, where a decrease in corporate bond yields,
or an increase in inflation rates, or an increase in life expectancy will result in an increase in plan Ilabllltles

This effect will be partially offset by the hedging strategy.in place which seeks to align the asset portfolro
with the inherent risk of the liabilities, in addition to entering into a longevity swap transaction with the aim
of hedgmg longevity risk inherent within the- pensioner population of the scheme. An increase in plan
liabilities could lead to the calling on, of additional contributions to fund any scheme shortfalls
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obllgatlon are as follows

2021

03148119

31 December

2020
- . £m . _Em
Present value of obllgatlon as at 1 January 5,798 5,433
Current service cost ) 9 6 -
Past service cost S 4
Interest cost 62 93
Benefits paid . , . (207) " (215)
Remeasurements: ' v
. Actuarial (losses)/gains - financial assumptions. (116) 491
Actuarial gains/(losses) — experience losses 114 (29)
Actuarial gains - demographic assumptions 52 15
Present value of obligation as at 31 December 5,712 5,798
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: . :
S ‘ E 2021 2020
£m £m
Fair value of plan assets as at 1 January 6,081 . . 5,696
Remeasurements: : ’ :
Expected return on plan assets 65 98
Actuarial gains : 22 476
Benefits paid (207) (215)
Employer contributions paid by AXA UK plc 107 6
Asset backed contribution 20 - 20 -
Fair value of plan assets as at 31 December - 6,088 6,081 -
- Analysis of assets by category: o g
S 2021 2020
£m £m
’ . Total = Total Total Total :
Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted  Unquoted Total
; £m £m £m £m £m. £m
Equities - 4 4 - 7 7 -
Debt securities 3,776 - 3,776 3,777 - 3777
-~ Government 2,510 - 2,510 2,638 - 2,638
Corporate 1952 - 952 833 - 833
Securitised debt 314 - 314 - 306 - 306
Property funds - 313 - 313 Co- 293 .293
Other assets 261 1,447 1,708 - 321 ‘1,356 1,677
Derivatives . 95 7. 95 244 - 244
Cash 166 - . 166 <77 - 77
Loans - 222 222 - 178 178
Investment funds - . 1,225 1,225 - 1,178 1,178
_Investment in limited partnership - 293 293 - - 319 319
Longevity Hedge - (6) (6) - 8 8
Fair value of plan assets as at . L ‘
2,051 6,088 1,983 6,081
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30. Retirement beneflt obligations. (continued)

»

Other post-retirement benefits -

AXA PPP Healthcare Group Limited, a fellow subsidiary, offers certain healthcare beneﬂts on a non-
contributory basis to the staff (for those who were employed prior to June 1989) of the Company upon
" retirement. The expected costs of the benefits have been assessed in.accordance with IAS 19 (Retirement
" Benefits) and the advice of an independent qualified actuary at 31 December 2021. Particulars of the
- valuation are contained in the financial statements of AXA PPP Healthcare Group Limited.

31. Commitments

a) Pledged securities and collateralised commitments given

. The Company pledged £16m (2020: £1 5m) government bonds as collateral for derivative contracts
with various entities including LCH Limited £13m.,

b) Other agreements

The Company had outstanding commitments to invest a further £33m (2020: £47m) in investment
funds, as summarised in the table below: .

- 2021 . 2020

: £m. £m
Investment funds (2021: $20m) (2020 $35m) - 15 o 26
Investment funds (2021: €17m) (2020: €9m) - 14 ' 8
Real Estate Funds (2021: €5m) (2020 €15m) ) 4 13

Total - 33 47

c) Pledged securities and collateralised commitments received

The Company received pledges of £8m (2020: £3m) government bonds as collateral to derivative
: contracts with JP Morgan, Barclays, Goldman Sachs, Morgan Stanley and NatWest Markets PLC;

32. Leases
Operating lease rental receivable — where the Company is the I'essor

The rental receivable relates to mvestment properties and are subject to rent reviews. The carrying amount
. of the associated assets is £11m (2020: £3m) shown within note 13.

The future aggregate mummum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operatlng leases are as
follows: :

2021 2020

Total

} £m £m
No later than 1 year ' : . 2 T
Later than 1-year and no later than 5 years : 2 2
Later than 5 years 2 2

6 5

33. Directors’ emoluments.

The directors are employed and paid by companies in the AXA Group .and their directorships are held as
part of that employment. The directors did-not receive any emoluments or other benefits from the Company
“or from any other company in'the AXA Group in respect of quallfylng services to the Company in the current
or pnor year.

Mr. R. Becker, Mrs. D. J. Dawes Mrs. T. N. Garrad, Mr. C. Gienal,-Mr. K.'A. Hale, Mr. P. F. Hazell, Mr. M.
R. Jackson, Mrs. C. J. Millington, Mr. R. J. A. Moquet, Mr. M. A. Pain and Mr. J. S. Wheway were also
directors of AXA UK plc during the year and their emoluments, which relate to their services to the AXA
" Group as a whole, are disclosed in the financial statements of that company. No directors of the Company
exercised share options or employee sharesave options during the year (2020: None).
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34. Related Party Transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption granted under- FRS 101 where subsidiary
.undertakings do not have to disclose transactions with fellow wholly owned Group companies, provuded that
"any subsidiary which is party to the transaction is wholly owned by such a member.

The Company entered into the following transactions with fellow subsidiaries which do not qualify for the
" exemption under FRS 101. Such transactions are included.in the profit and loss account and balance sheet :

‘under the foIIowmg captions:

: R 2021 2020
Related Party £m . £m
Income ¢ ) ' N ' ) p '
Gross earned premium - ' Fellow subsidiaries 88 . 92 '
“ Outward reinsurance premiums - Fellow subsidiaries (23) ' . }20)
"Total 65 72.
Expenses
Gross claims paid Fellow subsidiaries (62) (55)
Reinsurers’ share claims paid Fellow subsidiaries 21 13
Gross change in the provision for claims Fellow subsidiaries - 6 2
Acquisition.expenses Fellow subsidiaries - (31) -(21)
Administration expenses Fellow subsidiaries (28) (24)
~ Investment expenses and charges Fellow subsidiaries (1) . 1
Total (95) ' (86) . -
Insurance related assets - . :
Debtors arising from direct insurance operations Fellow subsidiaries - 17 26
Debtors arising from reinsurance operations Fellow subsidiaries 35 30
Provision for unearned-premiums — relnsurers share Fellow subsidiaries - 6. 5
Deferred acquisition costs e - Fellow subsidiaries . 6 8
Total o 64 69
-Insurance related liabilities o
Provision for unearned premiums : Fellow subsidiaries 38 35
Claims outstanding and loss adjustment expenses Fellow subsidiaries 15. 20
Creditors arising from direct operations Fellow subsidiaries " 2 2
Creditors arising from reinsurance operatlons . Fellow subsidiaries 8 14
Total ' 63 71
Assets managed by fellow subsidiaries )
Shares and other variable yield securities 214 217
Debt and other fixed income securities 647 602
Derivative financial instruments 18 16
Loans and receivables 14 15
Investment property v 1 . 12
Total 904 862
Liabilities managed by fellow subsidiaries
Derivative financial instruments. 8 9
- Total ’ , 8 9

No allowance has been made for impaired receuvables in relation to any outstandmg balances due from

related parties. .
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35. Contingent liabilities

-With the approval of the PRA, the Company, its rntermedrate parent company, AXA Insurance plc, its

immediate parent company, AXA Insurance UK plc, and a fellow subsidiary undertaking, have entered into
-a mutual guarantee whereby each company guarantees payment of all liabilities incurred by the others in
. respect of general insurance business. AXA Insurance plc receives no benefit from the guarantee.

36. Immediate and ultimate parent
The Company's immediate parent is AXA Insurance UK plc, a company registered in England.

" The Company's ultimate parent and controlling company is AXA SA, a company incorporated in France.
The parent undertaking of the largest group which includes the Company and for which group financial
- statements are prepared is AXA SA. Copies of the AXA Group financial statements can be obtained from
25, Avenue Matignon, 75008 Paris, France.

37. Management of financial risk
I Financial risk management objectrves and pollcles »

.The Company is exposed to various financial I’ISKS through the |nherent uncertarnty in undertaking
insurance business affecting its financial assets, financial liabilities, reinsurance assets and insurance
liabilities. The most important components of these risks are market risk (including interest rate risk,
equity price risk and currency rrsk) credit rrsk and liquidity risk. :

The Company forms part of the AXA UK Group which has an established risk managementframework
on how each risk profile is identified, measured, monitored and controlled through Risk Committees
advising the individual business unit Chief Executives. A dedicated risk managemerit function

. supports the individual business units by .ensuring that a full understanding and control of risks is
incorporated into management decision making and procedures.

Financial risks are considered from both a shareholder and a.policyholder liability perspective with

the adoption of the appropriate risk policies to cover different situations, such as insurance contracts,

where the principal technique is to match assets to liabilities, non- mvestment credit risk and liquidity
" risk. .

The notes to follow address the individual components of financial risk, caprtai management
employed and insurance risks associated wrth underwriting, pricing and reserving.

Il. Market rlsk

Market risk is defined as the risk that movements in market factors, such as interest rates and

exchange rates and the market valuation of equities, bonds and property, impact adversely the value

of, or income from, the financial assets. Also, to the extent that claims inflation is correlated to interest

rates, liabilities to policyholders are exposed to interest rate risk.

For an insurance company, market risk appetite is required to optimise investment performance while
reflecting the aim of retaining prudent margins to avoid insolvency. In order to control market risk,

. assets are chosen where relevant to match a range of underlying liability characteristics such as their
mean duration, inflation and currency factors. In addition an investment risk appetite framework isin
place to monitor and control exposure to the different types of market risk.

The AXA UK Investment Committee is responsible for reviewing and monrtorlng the strateglc asset
allocation in respect of the invested assets of AXA UK group companies. Investment Guidelines detail
the constraints to which the invested assets must be managed by the fund managers. The strategic
asset allocation takes into account the ‘interaction between assets and liabilities. Regular risk
monitoring and reporting is in place to mitigate the potential adverse impact of market risks on the
invested assets. A concentration risk framework is in place to manage the counterparty risk exposure

Derrvatrve contracts are used for the purposes of efficient portfolio management and/or the reduction
of market risk. For example, interest rate swaps are used for the purpose of managing interest rate
risk and cross currency swaps and currency forward contracts are used for the purpose of managing
currency risk.
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a)

Market risk (continued)

Hedge accounting has been applied using fair value hedging (portfollo basis) and cash flow hedglng

-as part of its risk management strategy to reduce the Company's exposure to interest rate and

exchange rate fluctuations of designated fixed income securities.
Industry analysis

The concentration of equities securities, including mutual funds, by industry is analysed as follows: "

A - 2021 2020
Equity analysis by industry ) - £m % £m % -
- Financial - , . 41 19 . 81 37
Consumer ’ ' 20 "9 16 7
Manufacturing & Pharmaceutlcals : 3 1 5 2
Basic Materials ‘ : 1 1 1 1
Technology&Telecommunlcatlons 12 6 10 -5
Otherst” " ' ‘ 138 64 104 .48
Total - E - ‘ 215 100 217 100

() Other investments include interests in mutual funds of £132m (2020: £100m).
The concentration of debt securities, by industry is analysed as follows:
' 2021 2020

Debt securities analysis by industry - £m % £m % -
Financial " 162 25 157 26
Consumer , : 107 16 © 100 - 17
Energy - : .23 4 22 - 4
Manufacturing & Pharmaceuticals _ , 29 5 32 5
Utilities . , . - 64 . 10 S 72 0 12
Basic materials ' ' 13 - 2 12 . 2
-Technology & Telecommunications = ‘ 60 ‘9 54 9
Government securities S . - 184 28 144 24
Others : ) : 5 . 1 9 1

Total . 647 100 602  100.0
Interest rate risk '

The fair value of debt securities is exposed to future interest rate quctuatlons Included in debt
securities of £647m (2020: £602m) is £10m (2020: £1 1m)in respect of variable rate debentures and
£111m (2020: £106m) in respect of index linked debentures. Debt securities with fixed interest rates
are exposed to fair value interest rate risk but not cashflow interest rate risk. Debt securities with
variable interest rates are exposed to cashflow interest rate risk but not fair value interest rate risk.

The sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk, illustrates how changes in the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument, specifically debt securities with fixed interest rates; will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates at the reporting date. An increase of 100 basis points in

" interest rates would result in a loss for the period of £14m (2020: £16m loss) plus unrealised losses

in the Statement of Comprehensive Income of 12m (2020: £5m). A decrease of 100 basis points in
interest rates would result in increased profit for the period of £15m (2020: £17m profit) plus
wunrealised gains in the Statement of Comprehensive Income of £13m (2020: £6m). An increase of
100 basis points in interest rates would increase the fair value of derivatives through income by £24m
(2020: £18m), a decrease of 100 basis points would decrease the fa|r value of denvatlves through
income by £26m (2020: £20m). : 4

The interest rate risk is not significant in cash at bank and in hand balances.
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I.
b)

c)

Market risk (continued)

Equity price risk K . " S
Equity price risk is managed through- the use of derivatives as shown within note 26 derivative

" financial instruments and hedging.- Listed equrty secuntles represent 22% (2020: 18%) of total equrty

mvestments including mutual funds.

f equlty valuatlons had increased by 10%, W|th all other variables constant, the operatmg result for

the year would remain unchanged (2020: unchanged). Unrealised galns recorded through the other
comprehensive income would increase by £5m (2020: £4m)..

" If equity valuations had decreased by 10%, with all other variables constant, the operating result for

the year would remain unchanged (2020: decrease by £1m). Unrealised gains recorded through the
oother comprehensive income would decrease by £5m (2020: £3m).

If the relevant market indices were to increase by 10%, the fair value of equity hedging derlvatlves
through -income would remain unchanged (2020: unchanged). A decrease of 10% in the relevant
market indices would increase the fair value of equnty hedging derlvatlves through income by £1m
(2020: £1m). 4

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk in respect of portfollos denominated in other currencies,
principally the Euro and US Dollar. Mitigation of this risk is achieved by matching assets and liabilities
in the same currency and the use of foreign exchange derivatives. At 31°'December 2021, if the pound
had weakened by 10%, with all other variables constant, the profit before tax would have increased

'by £3m (2020: 10% weakening increased by £1m), and if the pound had strengthened.by 10%, with

all other variables constant, the profit before tax would have decreased by £2m (2020: 10%
strengthening, decreased by £1m). Despite the currency volatility experienced during the year, the
Company’s exposure to currency risk is not srgnlflcant due to adequate hedglng mechamsms

Currency anaIyS|s of investment in financial assets

2021 ) EURO ~© GBP usbD Other Total
o £m % £m % . _£m % £m % £m %

" Debt securities 138 21 - 35 . 55 153 24 - - - 647 100 -
Equities (including . : o

mutual funds) 54 25 53.* 25 - 99 46 9 4 215 100
Derivatives 8 44 3 17 7 39 - - .18 - 100
Loans ’ 10 67 "5 33 - -. - - 15 100
Total 210 24 417 - 47 259 29 9 1 °~ 895 100
2020 ) EURO GBP . USD Other Total .

: £m % £m %, £m %  £m % £m %

Debt securities - 128 - 21 324 54 150 25 - - 602. 100
Equities (including . : '

mutual funds) 34 16 96 4 - 77 36 10 5 217 100
Derivatives =~ ' 3. 19 . - - 13 81 - - 16 100
Loans . 11 . 69 .5 31 - S - - - " 16 100
Total ' 176 - 21 . 425 50 240 28 10 1 851 100

The exposure of the Company to currency risk on other financial assets and liabilities is-not significant.

- Credit risk

Credit risk can be defined as the risk of capital or income loss resultlng from counterparty default or
issuer credit downgrades affecting financial assets.

For investment related items credit risk is actively accepted in anticipation of the potential returns to
be made but within closely controlled limits set and monitored as part of the concentration risk
framework and the investment risk appetite framework. The purpose of  the concentration nsk
framework is to limit the exposure to an |nd|V|duaI counterparty.
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37. Management of financial risk (continued)
lil. Credit risk (contmued) .

Non-investment items which generate credit risk generally arise as a by- product of the Companys
insurance operations, such as premium debts from policyholders and intermediaries, reinsurance
balances and other operational debts. Exposure is controlled via dlfferent processes including the
active monltormg of premlum debt. :

EEERY

' " The source of the credit ratlng where available is Bloomberg composnte rating, representing the.
- average of the Moody's, Standard and Poor’s and Fitch credit ratings.

The maximum exposure for the Company'’s assets bearing credit risk is the carrymg value

The age analysis of insurance and reinsurance debtors is presented as follows: °

Not past Overdue Overdue :
due or less than 6 more than .Provided ' Carrying
impaired months 6 months for value
~ £m £m . Em . . £m - £m
. 2021 . ‘ : _ '
Direct insurance operations ... 354 7 1 4 (4) 358
Reinsurance operations -70 1 1 ) - 72
2020 . .- ‘
Direct insurance operations 352 8 4 (4) 360
Reinsurance operations : 69 9 1 e - : 79

Credit risk assets by economic exposure are analysed below; the spread is managed to ensure that

there is no-significant concentration of credit risk:

2021 -Note  AAA AA A BBB BB NR Total
, ' ' £m £m - £m £m £m £m .£m
- Debt securities 14 77 160 185 219 2 ' 4 647
Loans © 14 - 11 3 - -1 15,
Derivatives - 14 . - - 8 10 - . - .18
Cash . - - 45 1 - - 46
Total . 77 171 241 230 2 5 . 726
Percentage 1% - 24%  33% 32% - 1% 100%

Certafn financial asséts including insurance and reinsurance receivables and other receivables, have
not been presented within the above table on the basis they would all be classified as-not rated.

2020 Note AAA AA A BBB BB NR Total
£m £m £m £fm . £Em- £m . fm
Debt securities 14 ' 71 135 179 207 5 5 602
Loans =~ . 14 S - 12 .3 - - 1 16
" Derivatives 14 - - 16 - S - 16
Cash : - - 58 - - - 58
Total 71 147 256 207 5 - 6. 692
Percentage 10% 21%  31% 30% 1% 1% 100%

IFRS 9 deferral disclosures

_ In accordance with the IFRS 9 deferral information reported within the basis of preparation, the two
tables below provide information on the financial instruments that pass the SPPI test and the credit
quality of those financial instruments passing the SPPI test.
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Il Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk information fqr financial instruments, péssing the SPPI test

AAA . AA A, BBB BB B Other Total -

2021 - £m £m £m “£m fm_  £m £fm  £m
Debt instruments : ' oo

Available for sale _ : SR .. ' g ‘

~ Gross carrying amount - 77 158 182 | 214 2 - - . 633

Fair value 77 . 160 185 219 2 - C- 643 .
] Current " 90 days and more - Total
. : SR ’ - past due

2021 ' ‘ £m fm - £m
Loans e ' s -

At cost - )

"Gross carrying amount 15 T - 15

‘Fair value : 15 .. 15

S | AMA _AA A BBB BB B  Other Total
2020 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Debt instruments ’ - . .

Available for sale

Gross carryingamount 71 - 133 - 173 . 201 5 1 - - 584
Fair value 71 - 135 179 - 207 5_ - - 597
.. Current 90 days and more Total
) S : past due
2020 - - - £m . £m £m
Loans ‘ : T , , :
At cost . . L
Gross carrying amount ) .17 ’ - : 17
Fair value 16 . - . - 16
SPPI TEST
- ‘ ’ B Pass the SPPI Test Other financial assets
o - Change ‘ Change
g - Fair in fair ‘ Fair - infair,
. . . _ . value i value . value value
2021 £m - fm £m £m
Debt instruments ) . .
Available forsale - . o 643 - (3) - : -
Fair value through profit and loss - — 4 o -
Derivatives ' o ‘
Held for trading . - - . 14 1
Herding derivatives o S - .- .4 3
Equity instruments AFS . - - 47 6
. Mutual funds ‘ ~ ‘ C f ,
. Available for sale - . ' - . - 68 1
" Fair value through profit and loss - : - 100. 2
Loans . 15 . - ’. -
TOTAL 658 - (3) 237 13
& [y
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Pass the SPPI Test

\
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Otner financial assets

Change , Change
Fair in fair Fair in fair
. value value value value
2020 - £m £m £m £m
Debt instruments I
Available for sale 597 - 1 - -
Fair value through profit and loss - - 5 -
Derivatives o
Held for trading - - 15 - 4
Herding derivatives - - 1 - (5)
Equity instruments AFS - - 38 - (3)
Mutual funds '
Available for sale - - 96 -
Fair value through profit and loss Co- - 83 (2)
Loans 16 (1) - -
TOTAL 613 - 238 (6)

Fmancnal assets that meet the def nition of held for trading in IFRS 9, or that are managed and whose

. performance is. evaluated ona fair value ba5|s have been included within other financial assets.

. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company, |rrespect|ve of solvency and prof tability, may
" not have sufficient available cash (or near cash assets or funding facmtles) to pay obllgatlons when
they fall due at reasonable cost.

Liquidity risk could arise from illiquid asset holdings, mapproprlate asset/llabllaty matching or mexact
forecast operating liquidity requirements resulting in insufficient short-term (including intra- day) and
longer-term liquidity. This is controlled via regular liquidity risk monitoring and reporting in addition to
regular short-term cash flow forecasting. A robust working capital management framework is |n place
to ensure there are appropnate loan and overdraft facilities in place. -

- The table below analyses the maturity of the Company’s financial assets and financial Ilabllutles based

on the remaining period-at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

The table indicates that liabilities due within one year exceed financial assets maturing within one
year. However, the majority of financial assets, which have a contractual maturity date of more than
one year, are traded on active markets and could be readlly liquidated if necessary. In addition, a
positive cash flow is expected to be generated from operations for the foreseeable future.
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3-5

' 1-2 Over 5 ' ,
1 year years - years  years Equities: Total
2021 . . £m £m £m £m ~ £m £m
.Financial assets ’ ’
Equities and mutual funds — .
OcClI , - - - - 115 115
Equities and mutual funds — ' '
P&L : o - - - - 100 100
Debt securities - OCI . 58 52 205 328 - - 643
Debt securities - P&L - - - 4 - 4
Loans ' ‘ 2 1 12 - - 15
Other debtors 35 - - - - 35
Cash at bank and in hand 46 - - - - 46
Total non-derivative . -7 ‘
financial assets 141 53 217 =~ 332 215 . 958
Derivative financial : o : :
instruments 10 4 3 1 .- 18 .
Total financial assets 151 57 220 333 215 976
Less than 1-5 _ Over5 ~
- 1year years years Total
2021 _ _ £m £m £m )
Financial liabilities
Claims outstanding 162 26 - - 188
Direct insurance operations © 48 - - 48
Reinsurance operations 8 - - 8
‘Other liabilities 118 -3 2 123.
Borrowings 30 oo " - 30
Total non-derivative liabilities 366 29 2 397
Derivative financial instruments "3 4 -1 8
Total financial liabilities 369 33 3 405
Lessthan ~ 1-2 3-5 Over5 ,
- .1year - years years years = Equities Total
2020 £fm . £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets ’
Equities and mutual funds — o '
OcClI o - - - - 134 134
Equities and.mutual funds — :
P&L - - - - 83 83
Debt securities - OCI 49 56 - 217 275 - 597
Debt securities - P&L - - - 5 - -5
Loans . 1. 2 13 - - 18
" Other debtors 35 - - - - 35
Cash at bank and in hand 58 - - - - - 58
Total non-derivative . .
financial assets 143 58 230 280 217 928 .
Derivative financial . ‘
" instruments 7 4 4 1 - 16
Total financial assets - 62 234 281 217 944
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37. Management of financial risk (continued)
“IV. Liquidity risk (continued). '
Lessthan ~ 1-5- . Over5 -

“1year years years Total -

2020 oL £m £m S £m £m
Financial liabilities . :
Claims outstandlng . 162 15 ' .- 177

- Direct insurance operations : 47 . S 47
Relnsuranc,e operations - ) 26 : - .- 26
Other liabilities ) 97 - 1 - 98
.Total non-derivative liabilities : 332 16 - 348 -
Derivative financial instruments 7 1 1 9

Total financial liabilities 339 : 17 1 357

V. Capital management \

' The Company is regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA") and the Prudential Regulatlon
Authority ("PRA”) and is subject to insurance solvency regulations which specify the minimum
amount and type of capital that must be held in addition to the insurance liabilities.

The Company is subject to the Solvency Il Directive, which establishes EU-wide capital
requirements, risk management and disclosure standards. The Solvency II framework is based on
three main pillars: (1) Pillar 1 consists of the quantitative requirements around own funds, valuation
rules for assets and liabilities and capital requirements, (2) Pillar 2 sets out qualitative requirements
for the governance and risk management of insurers, as well as for the effective supervision of
insurers including the requirement for insurers to submit an’Own Risk and Solvency Assessment
(“ORSA”) which will be used by the regulator as part of the supervisory review process; and (3)
Pillar 3 focuses on enhanced reporting and disclosure requirements. The Solvency Il framework
covers, among other matters, valuation of assets and liabilities, the treatment of insurance groups,
the définition of capital and the overall level of requnred capital.

The Solvency Il Directive provides for two separate levels of solvency margin: (i) the Minimum Capltal
Requirement (“MCR?”), which is the amount of own funds below which policyholders and beneficiaries
are exposed to an unacceptable level of risk should the Company be allowed to continue its
operations, and (ii) the Solvency Capital Requirement (“SCR"), which corresponds to a level of
eligible own funds that enables insurance and reinsurance companies to absorb significant losses
and that gives reasonable assurance to policyholders and beneficiaries that payments will be made.

The Company calculates its SCR in accordance with AXA's approved internal economic capital
model, which is designed to allow AXA entities to choose the local calibrations which better reflect
the local risk profile and to capture all the material risks to which AXA is exposed. As a result, the
internal economic capital model better aligns the capital requirement metrics with management
decision making. The Company has complied with all regulatory capital requirements throughout the -
year. 4

The PRA continues to regularly review the underlying methodologies and assumptlons of the
Company’s model for adequacy and such review may lead to adjustments to the level of capital
‘required by the PRA. The European Insurance and Occupational Pensions Authority (‘EIOPA”) is
also expected to carry.out a review of the consistency of European insurers’ models and any such
review may léad to regulatory changes to i increase convergence and to strengthen oversight of cross-
border groups. .
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V.

VI.

Capital management (continued) ' .

The reconciliation movement in capltal resources between FRS101 ‘and Solvency II is as fol|ows
' 2021 : 2020

£m £m .

. Equity shareholder’s funds » . ‘ 398 " 360
Full market value of assets - T 28 13

. Intangible assets and Deferred acqunsntlon costs (99 . (93)
" Best estimate liabilities and market value margm 131 : 131
Other - (10)
Solvency I financial capital resources ; S 458 . - 401
SCR : ‘ S : 258 o 258
MCR ' _; _ _ . 89 .92
Solvency I financial capltal resources/SCR ‘ . 146.5% “. 0 155.4%

,The Company has reviewed capital resources and requiréments on an economic basis as at the end

of 2021. In performing this review, both the regulatory requirements and Executive Management's
internal objective - including ability to meet key shareholder’'s requirements - have been considered.
The Company ensures that the level of capital is approprlate to eénsure an adequate posmon of the
Company from a competitive point of view. .

At 31 December 2021, the Company had a foreseeable dividend of £80m’ which reduced the 2021
Eligible Own Funds from £458m to £378m.

Insurance and reinsurance risk

The Company’s insurance risk policy outlines its objectives in carrying out insurance business, its
appetite for insurance risk and its policies for identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling
insurance risk. Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk.and is monitored through the
AXA UK Insurance Risk Committee. This includes the effectiveness of the reinsurance programme
in reducing the gross provisions whllst considering the non-investment credit rlsks associated with
reinsurance balances.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the pOSSIblllty that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. - By the very nature of an insurance contract, the nsk
is unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probablllty is applled to pricing and ’

_provisioning, the principal risk that the Company faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual
claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur

because the frequency or severity of claims and benefits-are greater than. estimated. Insurance
events are unpredictable and the actual number and amount of claims and benefits will vary from
year to year from the level established using statistical technlques

~ Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, "the smaller the relatlve

variability about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more drver5|ﬁed portfolio is less likely to
be affected across the board by a change in any subset of the portfolio.

The Company has developed its inSurance underwriting strategjy to diyersify the type of insurance
risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks
to reduce the variability of the expected outcome. Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack

. of risk diversification in terms of type and amount of risk, geographical location and type of industry

covered. The concentration of insurance risk by geographical area is dlsclosed in divisional
information (note 2). .

The mean duration of the expected settlement pattern for claims arising from insurance contracts in

force at the end of the reporting perlod is 0.3 years (2020 0.3 years)
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VL.

Insurance and reinsurance risk (continued)

General insurance contracts — assumptions and change in assumptions

a)

Process used to decide on assumptions

In addition to controllmg upstream risks and analysnng the reinsurance strategy, the Company
specifically monitors reserve risks. ’ .

Reserves have to be booked for claims as they are reported These reserves are measured
individually for each file by the claims departments. Additional reserves for ‘incurred but not
reported (“IBNR”) claims, along with reserves for not enough reported (IBNER - incurred but not
enough reported) are also booked. Various statistical and actuarial methods are used in these
calculations. Calculations are initially carried ‘out locally by the techmcal departments and.are
then reviewed by local risk management teams.

The Company has an annual review programme to ensure the valldlty and coherence of the
models used is |n accordance with actuarial pnncuples and accounting rules in force. -

The Company's methods are based on internal and industry best practice.

" Actuaries in charge of assessing reserves for clalms payable do not use a single method but a

selection of approaches such as:

¢ Methods based on the development of claims (paid or incurred) using triangulation methods .
(e.g. chain ladder and link ratio) for which past experience is applied to each loss occurrence
or underwriting year, in order to make reserves projections until their estimated fi nal
development . :

~

e The average cost per claim method whuch apphes an estimated average cost to the final -
number of claims expected to be notified in each loss occurrence or underwriting year.

e Methods’ based on claims ratios (such as the ultimate claims ratio or the additlonal claims
ratio). ‘ .

e Hybrid methods (such as Bornhuetter-Ferguson and Cape Cod).

The analysis is segmented dlfferently depending on product type, geographical Iocatuon

-distribution channel, regulation and other factors in order to obtain a homogeneous claims base

and ensure an appropriate analysis of reserves.

Assumptions depend on available data relating to reported losses at the time of the estimates,
as well as regulations, claims management procedures, pricing, underwriting information and

‘the ‘'type of activities and claims (coverage type, attritional or major claims, recent or old

occurrence). They also depend on economic, social and environmental factors, as well as on
the legislative and political context, which are important variables in terms of reserves. -
Assumptions are made - following -discussions” with ‘claims managers, pricing actuaries,
underwriters and other specialised departments. These dlscussmns lead to the definition of
reasonable estimate ranges

However, it must be kept in mind that estimates are based mainly on assumptlons that may
prove different from'subsequent expérience, particularly in the event of changes in the economic
environment (e.g. a rise in inflation), in the legal environment (case law) and in the social
environment (class action suits), and especially if they affect the Companys main portfolios
simultaneously.

" b) Change in assumptrons '

No significant changes to assumptlons were made in 2021, other than the judgment of the
pattern of the earning profile, see note 23.
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37. Management of financial risk (contmued)
VII... Fair value estimation

. “The following table prowdes an analysns of financial instruments carned at fair value, grouped by
valuation methodology. The levels are descrlbed below the tables, they are based on the degree to’
which the fair value is observable.

Financial assets recognised at fair value in the fair value measurement hlerarchy at
31 December 2021 .

2021.  Level1 Level2 Level 3

Descnptlon . ‘ ' ' £fm - . £m . £m £m

Financial assets at fair value through proft and . -

loss .

Derivative mstruments - h .14 - 14 -
Debt instruments - ‘ 4 - 4

Mutual funds : 100 .- 94 6

Available for sale financial assets o . Ty '

- Equity investments ~ 47 44 -3 -
Debt securities . ' X " 643 539 104 -
Mutual funds : 68 . - 19 49 -

Derivative financial mstruments for hedgmg ' o '
Interest rate swaps - - - - 4 - - 4 -

Total financial assets at fair value ' - 880 "602A 2727 6

Fair value of investments recognised at amortised cost presented in the fair value
measurement hierarchy at 31 December 2021 '

12021 Level1 Level2 - Level3

Description’ ' o . fm £m £Fm £m
" Fair value of investments at amortised cost ; S ' '
Investment property 17 - - 17

- Total . . 7 - - 17

Financial |IabI|ItIeS recognised at fair value in the fair value measurement hlerarchy at
31 December 2021

2021 Level 1 LeveI2 - Level 3

Description =~ .- . fm  £m £m £m
Financial liabilities at fair value through proft : '
- and loss »
. Derivative instruments ’ : 5 - 5 . -
Derivative financial instruments for hedging ) 4
Interest rate swaps ] ) 3 _ - 3 ) -

' Total financial liabilities at fair value 8 - 8 -
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VI Fair value estimation (continued) .

" Financial assets recognised at falr value in the falr value measurement hierarchy. at
31 December 2020

A_ 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Descnptlon ' ' £m £m = Em . £m
Financial assets at falr value through profit and ‘ ‘
loss .
Derlvative instruments v 15 7 - 15 -
Debt instruments . . 5 - .5 ’
Mutual funds o - 83 - 78 5
" Available for sale financial assets ) A : .
Equity investments 38 34 4 -
Debt securities ' 597 446 151 -
Mutual funds ' ' : : 96 oo- 95 17
Derivative financial instruments for hedging A
Interest rate swaps ’ ' ‘ 1 1 - , -
Total financial assets at fair value 835 481 348 - 6

Fair value of mvestments recogmsed at amortised cost presented in the falr value
measurement hierarchy at 31 December 2020

2020 Level1 Level2 Level3

Description - ' : . - __£m £m £m £m
‘Fair value of investments at amortised cost
Investment property 16 ] - - 16

Total , : 16 R N 16

Financial liabilities recogmsed at fair value in the falr value measurement hlerarchy at
31 December 2020 :

2020 Level1 = Level 2 Level 3

Descrnptlon . _£m £m £m £m
Financial liabilities at fair value through proft : B
and loss o : ,
. Derivative instruments S T 7 . - 7 -
Derivative financial instruments for hedging ' o

Interest rate swaps ‘ 2 - - 2 -

Total financial liabilities at fair value ' 9 - ’ 9 -

Level 1 transfers to Level 2 wereé £10m (2020: £32m) and Level 2 transfers to Level 1 were £76m
(2020: £9m) during the year. Both transfers from Level 1 to Level 2 and transfers from Level 2 to
Level 1 occur primarily due to changes in the availability of pricing information. This assessment
occurs on a semi-annual basis. ‘

Other financial instruments carrying values do not differ S|gmf cantly from thelr fair value
a) Financial mstruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted bid prices at
the balance sheet date, as described in the financial assets accounting policy. These -
instruments comprise primarily FTSE listed equity investments, govemment debt securities and-
corporate debt securmes which meet the Level 1 criterion.
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VIL.

!

- Fair value estimation (continued)

b) Financial instruments in level 2

o

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active markets is determined by
using recognised valuation techniques, as listed in accounting policy XI(d) ‘fair valué estimation’.
The inputs to the valuation techniques are mainly derived from observable market data where
itis available, and if all significant inputs required to falr value an mstrument are observable, the
instrument is included in Level 2.

-Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the srgnlf icant inputs -are not based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3. The valuation techniques employed in determining the fair value are listed

in accounting policy XI(d) ‘fair value estimation’.. The main investment included within Level 3 is

the Ardian Global debt fund, the investment has no equivalent market activity and is valued on -
the various valuatlons of the assets held wrthm the fund.

Investment in properties are considered as assets not quoted inan actlve market and the weight
of observable inputs in the valuation concludes that the fair value calculations, performed by -
qualified property surveyors based on inputs from assets.which are similar or comparable are
considered as Level 3. . C ) '

The impact of deterioration in the underlying exposure of 20% would result in a decrease in the'

. fair vaIue of the asset and other comprehensive income of £4.6m (2020: £4. 4m)

The following table presents the changes to Level 3 instruments for the year ended
31 December 2021 :

Fair Value g Investment

through P&L Available for property

. o Funds  Sale Funds. : ‘

. Description ' - ‘ ' £m £m - £m
. Opening balance o , -5 ' T 16
Settlements ' - (1) -
Purchases ‘ : - - 1 - -

Change in fair value _ ' - - 1

Closing balance 6 - - 17

The followmg table presents the changes to Level 3 mstruments for the year ended
31 December 2020

Fair Value Available Investment

through P&L for Sale property

. ~Funds . Funds .
Description o E£m £m - £m
Opening balance. o 4 -1 18
" Purchases ‘ - ' 1 -
Change in fair value - - (2
Closing balance ‘ - 5 1 16

38. Post balance sheet events .
A dividend of £80m was approved by the board for payment on the 22 March 2022

On February 24, 2022, Russia invaded Ukraine, trlggermg a war and worldwide geopolmcal tensrons
leading the United States, Europe, the United Kingdom and some other countries to impose unprecedented
financial and trade sanctions on the Russian economy, mcludlng asset freezes and restrictions on
mduvrduals and institutions, notably the Russran Central Bank.
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38. Post balance sheet eQents (contmued)

~ The directors are closely monltonng the situation and the_direct and |nd|rect impact on the Company. The .
Company has well established and robust: policies and procedures to ensure adherence to all regulatory
_requirements. Although the situation is evolving, the Directors are confident that any direct exposure through

. underwntmg activities is negligible, and the operational impact i is not material.

The macro-economic environment is similarly belng closely monltored and in partlcular the |mpact on-
financial markets, inflation and interest rates. The Company forms part of the AXA UK Group which has an
established risk management framework which details how each financial risk profile is identified, measured,
monitored and controlled. The current level of market volatility IS not signifi cantly impacting the UK
investment portfolios. . .
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